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SECRETARY OF DEFENSE DONALD H. RUMSFELD 
INTERVIEWED ON CBS-TV "FACE THE NATIONn 

SUNDAY, FEBRUARY 1~ 1976 
BY 

Mr. George Herman, CBS News 
Mr. Ike Pappas, CBS News Pentagon Correspondent 
Mr. Leslie H. Gelb, New York Times Diplomatic Correspondent 

Mr. Herman: Mr. Rumsfeld, what is the national defense or other national 
interest significance of Angola? What does it mean to us? 

Secretary Rumsfeld: I think the best way to look at what's taking place 
there is to put it in a broader context of all of Africa. If one looks over 

.the past five years, for example, it's clear that the Soviet Union and Cuba 
have put something in the neighborhood of three billions of dollars into 
Africa, including Angola, and the effect of that, of course, is to develop 
ports and airfields and depots, and to strengthen governments that they feel 
are favorable to them. And when one looks at that entire continent and 
recognizes the interests that the Soviet Union has, I think that it's through 
that that one gets the sense of the significance. 

* * * * * * * * Mr. Herman: Mr. Rumsfeld, you answered my opening question about the 
importance of Angola with sort of a sketch of the situation in Africa. I have 
to say that I'm not anything of an expert on that, and I need to be enlightened 
a little bit as to whether this presents a military and national defense 
threat to the United States. 

Secretary Rumsfeld: I think that what it represents is clearly an increasing 
interest on the part of the Soviet Union, and certainly in this case Cuba, in 
Africa, and that our interest is served by having an African continent that 
the nations have governments that are of their preference and not necessarily 
of the Soviet Union's preference. The military significance is obvious, that 
to the extent that the Soviet Union improves its basing and airfields throughout 
the continent of Africa it is able to project power to a considerably greater 
extent in that part of the world than previously, but this is not a military 
question from the standpoint of the United States. I think the confusing thing 
has been that people have been saying no more Vietnams. Well, there is no one 
in the government that I've talked to who doesn't fully recognize that we have 
no intention of putting any U.S. troops in Angola, and that has never been an 
issue. And it's really a misservice to the discus.sion to get into that Vietnam 
analogy, because it is so flawed. 

Mr. Gelb: Mr. Secretary, if we have to stop the expansion of Soviet 
influence in Angola and other parts of Africa, don't we have to do that 
everywhere; and if so, aren't we back to the 1950s and '60s in the height of 
the Cold War -- anything the Russians do we have to stop? 

Secretary Rumsfeld: No; obviously, I think that what we have to do, however, 
is to look at the world and look at our circumstance and recognize the fact that 
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the power of the Soviet Union has grown dramatically in the last ten to 
"fifteen years. The United States has moved from a position of clear 
preponderance of power to one of rough equivalency. I don 1 t think that my 
sketch of what's taking place in Africa suggests that the United States has 
in the past or is now attempting to stop Soviet influence everywhere in the 
world. I think, however, that as one watches what's taking place in Africa, 
reasonable people properly can be concerned about the involvement by the 
Soviet Union in so many nations of Africa to the tune of some $3 billion 
in the last five years. 

Mr. Pappas: Mr. Rumsfeld, is the United States sending money to Britain 
or to any other countries to train mercenaries in those countries to be sent 
to Angola? There's a story this morning-- a newspaper report --which says 
that we are pouring twenty million dollars into Britain to train mercenaries, and 
sending them to fight in Angola on our behalf. 

Secretary Rumsfeld: As has been widely discussed on the Hill, there was 
a covert activity not involving U.S. personnel and no involvement of the 
Department of Defense. The issue is presently being debated between the 
Executive and Legislative Branch as to whether, and if so to what extent, it's 
appropriate for the United States to provide funds to assist those forces in 
Angola who are in fact resisting the Soviet and Cuban-backed elements. 

Mr. Pappas: I don't think that that answers the question, though. The 
question is, have we sent funds to other countries -- CIA money or any other 
kind of money'( 

Secretary Rumsfeld: As I indicated, there has been what was once a covert 
activity on the part of the United States involving some funds to provide 
assistance to an element in the Angolan conflict. 

Mr. Passas: By using other countries -- is that correct? 

SecretaL~ Rumsfeld: I don't care to get into the details of what should 
have been t think properly something t.hat 

Mr. Pappas: Is it going on now? 

Secretary Rumsfeld: - would have been handled in a covert way. I think . 
that it's clear that the Congress has expressed itself on this, and that to the 
extent anything is to occur in the future, it would be as a result of extensive 
Executive and Legislative Branch discussions and possibly legislation. 

Mr. Gelb: Mr. Secretary, you used the figure three billion dollars, total 
Soviet aid to Africa in the last few years. I've never heard that figure 
before. Could you detail that for us? 

Secretary Rumsfeld: I could, I don't have the statistics with me, but 
I detailed it before the House Armed Services Committee last week, and it's 
a matter of public record. The countries between the period 1971-1975, we have 
estimates of the Soviet and Cuban financial assistance, military assistance and 
economic af9sistance -- basically military assistance -- and it is a matter of 
public record. 
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Mr. Gelb: But this comes back to the whole question of how we define 
our interests in the world. Again you said we're trying to help out in 
Angola to stop the Soviets. As I look through your posture statement here. l:O 
justify $112 billion in defense spending. every weapons system is justified 
on the grounds that the Soviets are doing scaething and we've got to match 
them. Are our interests in the world defined by what the Soviets do, in 
every case? 

Secretary Rumsfeld: That's a good question, and I have answered it in that 
posture statement, and what I've said essentially is this -- that we certainly do 
not need to match the Soviets or any other country in every detail. However, 
the American people have been told that we have a policy, and they have 
supported that policy, of not wanting the United States to be second to 
anyone. That is to say, they have supported the concept of maintaining 
rough equivalence, or sufficiency. The treads that we've seen in spending 
by the Soviet Union versus the United States in terms of strategic and con-
ventional general-purpose forces over the past ten to fifteen years have 
brought us from a position where we had superiority to one'where we have rough 
equivalence. If those trends continue -- not in every detail, but in the aggregate -
if they continue, we will have changed our policy, because we would have said we 
are willing to have something less than sufficiency, and that would in fact 
inject a serious instability into the world. 

Mr. Herman: Do you mean something less than sufficiency or something less 
than superiority? 

Secretary Rumsfeld.: I mean exactly what I said 

Mr. Herman: Nothing less than sufficiency. 

Secretary Rumsfeld: -- nothing less than sufficiency. That is to say, 
we would be creating an unstable world. Now, the specific answer to your 
question is, yes, in the aggregate, to the extent that the Soviet Union continues 
to increase annually its spending and improve its capabilities in the strategic 
and general-purpose force area, there is no question but that if, on a relative 
basis that continues, and we continue to decrease, that we would have in fact 
moved to a po&ition of a lack of sufficiency. I don't think that's the policy 
that the American people want; I don't believe that's the policy we're going 
to have in the coming years. I think we're going to check those trends and 
see that in fact we can continue the present policy ·we have of maintaining 
sufficiency. And that bears a direct relationship to the power of the Soviet 
Union. 

Mr. Pappas: Mr. Rumsfield, are the building for a war? Is that what the 
trend is all about? Are the Russians going to have a war with the United States 
ten years, five years -- thatts what people are worried about; that's what 
people ask me all the time. Is that inevitable.? 

Secretary Rumsfeld: I think that we can be very pleased that the United 
States has, in fact, over a period of time, maintained sufficient strength that 
we have had a deterrent to the kind of war you're talking about. The American 
people want peace; they want stability. The way to have that is by seeing that 
we do not ~e to an inferior position. People talk about provocation. You caa 
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be provocative by being belligerent; you can also be provocative by being 
too weak, and thereby enticing others into adventures that they would 
otherwise avoid. I think that there is no question in my mind but that we 
can be reasonably certain that if we maintain our defense capabilities. if 
we maintain sufficiency-- and that's going to require checking those adverse 
trends -- that we can in fact be sure that we have sufficient deterrence to 
avert such a war. 

Mr. Herman: Can some of those adverse trends be checked by negotiation 
and by agreement? I'm talking, of course, of the Strategic Arms Limitation 
Talks, or SALT for short. One of the questions Ike says a lot of people ask 
him about, are the Russians preparing for war; a lot of people ask, are the 
Russians cheating on the first SALT agreement? 

Secretary Rumsfeld: I think that it is difficult for a good many people 
to accept the idea of maintaining adequate defense capability so that we have 
sufficiency, and at the same time engaging in negotiations with the power in 
the world that is developing the capabilities that the Soviet Union has been 
developing. My answer to you is yes, we can in fact - I think, and properly 
should -- continue to explore ways with the Soviet Union to see if possibly 

_. 

our interests converge in certain areas, whether it's in SALT or Mutual and 
Balanced Force Reductions, and attempt to find ways to cap the growth of these 
weapons. So I support the strategic arms negotiations and the mutual and balanced 
force reduction talks. 

Mr. Herman: Are you encouraged by SALT I? 

Secretary Rumsfeldi -- however, we have to enter those negotiations, and conduct 
ourselves in those negotiations, with a recognition that we have to have as our 
goal the maintenance of stability and security for the United States. These 
negotiations can't be a one-way street. 

Mr. Herman: The main p&rt of the question was the arguments 
in various quarters, that the Soviet forces have been cheating on 
mentation of the first SALT agreement. What is your own feeling? 
been cheating, or abiding by their agreements? 

that you hear 
their imple­
Have they 

Secretary Rumsfeld: I've looked at the subject of violations. There have 
been a variety of them, involving concealment practices, involving some silos for 
command and control purposes, and the question of th~ heavy missile. My sense 
of it is that we have seen in the past that unilateral statements on our part are 
something that the Soviet Union does not subscribe to. We've seen that the Soviet 
Union, in terms of the development of its capabilities, has in the past -- and I 
think we should assume in the future -- every intention of moving exactly up to 
that line. Now, there are areas where I think a reasonable case can be made 
that they are questionable, and I can also say that we have in place a process 
that I believe, inside the u.s. government, whereby when this occurs, we can in 
fact raise those issues with the Soviet Union in a timely way, and it's clear 
to me that there have not been any violations that have affected our national 
security. That is to say, when a questionable practice has been identified, it's 
been raised, and it's been discussed with the Soviet Union, and we have worked 
that problem to see that our security has not been adversely affected. 
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Gelb: Mr. Secretary, I'd like to come back to the question of defining our 
interests by matching the Soviet Union once more. The Administration has said that 
the Russians have put $200 million into Angola, and 11,000 Cuban fighters. Does that 
mean tliat we have to match them, put in that much money? And if we don't put in as 
much as they do, aren't they going to win anyway? 

Secretary Rumsfeld: Well, it obviously does not mean that we should match them 
in every detail, as I indicated in my answer. I think it would be certainly unwise 
for the United States to think that we should have our behavior controlled in every 
detail on the basis of what the Soviet Union has done. 

Gelb: But what difference does it make, the $28 million the Administration is 
asking for, for Angola, against this $200 million and 11,000 Cuban fighters? What 
good would it do? 

Secretary Rumsfeld: Well, I think that the good that it would do would be to 
provide financial support to the forces in Angola that are not anxious to have the 
Soviet-backed faction, which represents a minority of the people in Angola 

Gelb: Would it be enough, would we have to put in more after that? 
Secretary Rumsfeld: Let me finish my answer -- which represent a minority of the 

Angolan people, and that to me seems to be a sensible approach. It specifically does 
not mean we should send in U.S. forces into Angola. There is no one who has 
suggested that at all. Would it be enough, I don't know. 

Herman: May I ask if we are operating on the correct premise -- there have been 
a lot of reports that it was the United States that started the pouring of money into 
Angola, not the Soviet Union. Are we matching them, or are they matching us? Who started 
the escalation in Angola? 

Secretary Rumsfeld: I .think what's taking place in Angola is the fact that 
there is a faction involved in the conflict that is backed by the Soviet Union and by 
the Cubans with money and troops, and that they have in fact been providing a substantial 
amount of assistance and that group is prevailing. 

Herman: I understand, but the question is, it has been charged that the United 
State was the first to put money into one of the factions in Angola, and that the 
Soviet Union was in fact responding to us. 

Secretary Rumsfeld: Well, I was not involveed except in the last two months as 
Secretary of Defense, and my understanding of the situation is that that's not the case. 
Now, I suppose somebody could go back and trace economic assistance of various types 
to different African countries, and say that ours started years ago, but in terms of 
attempting to influence the outcome of this present conflict, my understanding of the 
situation is that that's not correct. · 

Pappas: Mr. Rumsfeld, I've got a question on the amount of the '77 budget. It 
was widely feported and reliably reported in November that the total amount was $110 
billion, and then suddenly, after Mr. Schlesinger is fired and you come on, it's up 
to $112.7 billion. Suddenly the President finds nearly $3 billion to put back in the 
budget. Now did your friendship have anything to do with that with the President? 

Secretary Rumsfeld: Obviously not. Presidents don't make decisions for budgets 
involving billions of dollars on the basis of friendship. Second, your statement that 
the figure was reported and reliably reported to have been at a certain level ignores 
the fact that the budget process lasts throughout an entire year. It is based on what 
the needs of this country are, and at various points it was up as high -- in excess 
of 122; it was at a figure of 117 at one point. The OMB at one point did have a 
figure of 110. 
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Pappas: Well, it was pretty firm from Mr. Lynn that it was going to be 110, and-­
Secretary Rumsfeld: Well, I don't think you can make those judgments --

Pappas: And then what happened, happened right after that. 
·secretary Rumsfeld: It's the President's budget, and the President made these 

judgments, and he made aound judgments, and it's important that the Congress pas~ a 
budget of this level and check the trends that exist, for the reasons I stated earlier. 
But until the President makes those decisions, which he had not at those earlier figures, 
whether higher or lower, it's not a budget and it's not the Preisenent's budget. 

Gelb: But there were different judgments about what was necessary for the United 
States to spend on miltiary security? 

Secretary Rumsfeld: There were different judgments, ranging as much as $15 
billions • 

. Gelb: But the President's budget office sent him a memo saying that if we only ask 
for $110 billion, that amount still had $3 billion padding in it to guard against 
Congressional cuts. 

Secretary Rumsfeld: That's just not correct. 

Gelb: There is no such memo by the President's Office of Management and Budget? 
Secretary Rumsfeld: There certainly is no such memo by Director Lynn. There 

may be staff memos floating around to that effect, but I know for a fact that the 
President made the judgment that he wanted a budget that he could defend in every 
respect. There was a good deal of debate as to whether the budget should be 112.7 or 
whether it should be 115 or 117 billion, because of such things as the questions that 
Congress has previously not agreed with, on pay, on stockpiles, on cutback in commissary. 
So the President said, look, we'll go for the lower amount, and say right in the budget 
that if the Congress increases those extras and tries to take that money out of program 
and investment for miltiary capability and the balance, that we will have to go in 
for a supplemental. Further, we went in with a budget thattit with our present negotiat~ 
ing status in SALT; we did not go into a budget that would present what we would need 
were the SALT negotiations not to go forward. So if anything, the reverse is in the 
budget, rather than what you're suggesting. 

Pappas: Former Secretary Schlesinger has said that he could support, he could 
publicly support the present budget at $112.7 billion, yet just before he was fired 
in November, there was a lot of pressure for him to leave -- and he said that he 
probably coundn't go to the Hill to publicly support it -- now there is every 
indication it was too low for him, which was even below $110 billion, and the question 
is, was the President politically influenced? There was a December poll that showed 
him trailing Ronald Reagan by eight points, and there ~s the accusation that he 
changed his mind about the budget, added to it, because of political reasons, in 
order to appease the right. 

Secretary Rumsfeld: That's just nonsense. 

Pappas: And you had no other influence on the budget itself, and on adding the 
$3 billion? 

Secretary Rumsfeld: No other pressure-- I don't know what you're referring to. 
I have been in the Department for two months. During the period I've been there, I 
have worked extensively with the President, the Office of Management and Budget, the 
Service Chiefs, and the Office of the Secretary of Defense to develop a budget that 
I believe represents a sensible approach to reversing the trends that have been 
going on for ten years. This must be done if we want to maintain a position of 
sufficiency. This budget does that. It fits in roughly the mix that I've described. 
A budget at a lower level, if we keep going on with this idea that you c~ cut 
billions out of Defense and they'll never miss it -- those days are gone. 
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The Defense budget has been reordered from something in the neighborhood of 42 
to 45 percent of the .{edel'l.\1 budget down to 25 percent. This buciget_, if it's cut in 
neighborhood of four to seven billion dollars, five to seven bilH .. o~ dollars, as 

has been the case in the last five years, it clearly will continue th~ trends that 
have oeen going on to the detriment of this country. 

Herman: How long does it take a Secretary of Defense to master the Defense 
Department's many details, its budget, all the things about it? 

Secretary Rumsfeld: On, I don't have any idea. I suppose that it varies from 
individual to individual. Certainly in two months, no one masters anything, I've had 
to restrict my involvement in the Defense Department to a relatively few number of 
areas during this early period. I have been deeply involved in SALT, deeply involved 
in the budget and intelligence activities, and personnel, and I hope that after we 
get through the budget cycle, I can broaden out into some of the other areas. 

Herman: Some Secretaries have said it takes at least a year to master all the 
details, so that you have real civilian control of the Department of Defense. Is that 
a likely figure? 

Secretary Rumsfeld: I would think that's a reasonable amount of time, but I don't 
_think you can quantify it specifically. 

Herman: Are you going to be there long enough to master all those details? 
Are you going to be there for a year? 

Secretary Rumsfeld: I would hope I would be there certainly the rest of this 
year, and assuming the elections turn out in the way I would hope they would, that I 
would be there for a total of five years. 

Gelb: Mr. Secretary, there are many who feel we should not be cutting back on 
our military procurement, ~ut do argue that there are many areas of the Defense budget 
that can be cut. Let me just mention two and get your reaction. First, since 1968, 
we've reduced the number of our Navy ships by 50 percent, but the number of Navy 
personnel only by 30 percent -- 50 percent fewer ships, and only 30 percent fewer 
personnel. Again, since '68, military manpower has been reduced by 40 percent, but 
civilian manpower in the Pentagon, only by 23 percent. Why these gaps? 

Secretary Rumsfeld: The do sound like gaps. However, I don't think that when 
you reduce your naval ships, as we have indeed in the last ten years, that we should 
expect a linear transistion in terms of manpower. In many instances, the ships that have 
been phased out have been the older ships, single-purpose ships, and many of the newer 
ships coming on line have been multi-purpose s~ips and of considerably more complexity: 

Secondly, as to the civilian and military, there is always a trade-off. You can 
in some instances find areas where you can move a responsibility from a military 
responsibility to a civilian responsibility. There have been substantial reductions 
in military manpower we've been holding them level for the last three years. We 
are still cutting civilian -- on the civilian side; as you know, our budget proposes a 
~6,000 reduction in the civilian side. It is something that I am still looking at, 
as to whether there are possibly additional cuts in the civilian area. Part of it 
depends upon Congressional cooperation and base realignments andourefforts to adjust 
the combat-to-support ratio' in terms of headquarters and these types of things. 

Pappas: Mr. Rumsfeld, you asked -- or rather you told the Senate Armed Services 
Committee this week that you might have to come back and ask for more money in a 
supplemental request, if the SALT talks fail. Now how much money, and for what reason? 

Secretary Rumsfeld: This is a subject that's presently before an inter­
governmental working group on that subject. I don't think we can predict it with any 
certainty at this point, because we don't anticipate that that will happen. We 
think it's moving along. The important point, it seems to .. me here, is that in the 
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next three months, the Congr~ss of the United States is going to make the 
fundamentally important decision as to what ·the over all spending for the government 
should be, and what portion of that should be for the Defense Department. That 
decision will be made by May 15; it's a significant decision, and one that I think 
we should put a great weight on, and I felt an obligation to alert the Congress that 
some of these areas that we've been talking about with Hr. Gelb, plus the SALT 
area, were areas that we might have to come back in on, in the event the Congress 
made a decision, and address those. 

Herman: Are you optimistic about SALT, and are you opttmistic about getting 
what you need, basically need, from Congress? 

Secretary Rumsfeld: With respect to SALT, it's not perfectly clear how that's 
going to work out. We working on it. As far as the Congress, yes, I don't think 
the American people want the United States to be second to anyone, and I think they 
are going to provide the funds that are necessary to check those trends. 
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NEWS CONFERENCE 
BY 

SECRETARY OF DEFENSE DONALD H. RUMSFELD 
AT THE PENTAGON 

. TUESDAY, JUNE 8, 1976 

I might just take a minute and make two or three conunents. As you.know, 
I'll be leaving tonight; we're going to stop in Lisbon, taking Ambassador 
Carlucci back to Portugal with us on the plane. We'll be visiting there with 
some officials of the Portugese Government and with Ambassadorcarlucci. The 
discussions there, of course, will involve a fellow ally in NATO, and their 
security situation, and their participation in the Alliance, and how we might 
be of help to them. 

I'll then go to Brussels that same day, be there for the Defense Pl~nning 
Com..."'!ittee Meetings with the Defense Hinisters. I believe that it's of 13 
natipns now, in that France doesn't participate, and Greece is not presently 
participating. I will be discussing with them the NATO, Warsaw Pact circumstance; 
the United States Government intentions to see that there are increases in our 
Defense budget and defense effort in real terms; and the facts and reasons 
that lead us to the conviction that is absolutely necessary, given the growth 
in Soviet capabilities over the past 10 or 15 years. We'll be working through 
an agenda that's prepared by the permanent representatives who sit in Brussels 
on a variety of subjects including the combat flexibil~ty, standardization, 
common weapons systems. I also would intend to visit with the Defense ~linisters 
about our hope that ou~ Allies in NATO will similarly improve their level of 
effort with respect to the common defense. That meeting ends on Friday. 

The Nuclear Planning Group ~eeting begins on Monday -- a smaller number 
of NATO Allies who rotate in and out of the Nuclear Planning Group. It's 
proven to be a useful forum over the years since it started, I believe in the 
60's for the very frank exchanges about sensitive nuclear issues. There will 
be some briefings on the strategic side and some discussions concerning theater 
nuclear weapons and modernization. 

There's a possibility bordering on a probability that I'll make a couple 
of stops after I leave Brussels at the conclusion of the'Nuclear Planning Group 
:Heeting, but those arrangements I don't believe have been completely finished 
as yet. I'll be happy to respond to questions. 

Q: Mr. Enthoven has held for some time that there are (1) too many nuclear 
weapons from a practical standpoint in Western Europe, and (2) they're the 
wrong sizes. Are you do:i.ng any discussing of this type of matter? 

A: That has been a subject, of course, of continuing discussion within 
the United States Government, within the Alliance over the decades. The 
important thing there is not the numbers; in other words, you don't begin in 
sorting through that problem on the basis of what's the ideal number. ~~at you 
do is you look at your defense capabilities and you first attempt to see that 
you have a stron& healthy conventional defense capability and deterrent from 
that standpoint. You then attempt to see that your theater nuclear capabilities 
are sen~ible in terms of the types and the locations and the degree of moderni­
zation that's been imposed on them and the arrangements for them. Those kinds 
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of considerations to ·see that you have an effective theater nuclear capability 
both from a defense standpoint and a deterrent standpoint, then drives you to 
certain arrangements as to numbers or types or shapes or locations, and tl~ose 
are the kinds of things that do in fact get discussed in the Alliance. 

Q: One problem $eems to be that the size of the weapons is such t~at they 
might be counter-effective in the sense that they might do more damage to us 
than they would do to the enemy, not necessarily to our troops, but to the 
civilian capabilities and civilian populations. 

A: That's kind of a statement. 

Q: That is the argument used --
A: Of course there's a great many factors to look at. One is to look at th( 

nature of the weapon from the standpoint of what's available technologically, 
and another is to look at kinds of numbers and locations, and another element is 
there's security which is something that's been of interest to us both from 
the standpoint of an attack possibly coming across and putting some in jeopardy, 
as well as from different types of security problems from terrorists and the 
like. There are a host of issues involved just as there are with conventional 
weapons and it's a matter for continuing attention and review, and it's something 
that we did discuss at the last Nuclear Planning Group Heeting and which 
certainly will continue to be discussed. 

Q: Is there any decision that you will go to a non-nuclear warhead for 
the Lance? 

A: Decision where? 

Q: Either in this country or in NATO, as to whether that should be provided 
with a dual-type of warhead? 

A: I don't know what you mean by a decision in NATO. There's been 
discussion in the building certainly in the Defense Establishment about 

Q: But as far as I can determine there's never been a decision in this 
building to provide American forces or NATO forces with non-nuclear warheads. 

A: That's not something that's come up in connection with my planning 
for this particular trip. 

. 
Q: Mr. Secretary, why did you choose to promote or·- expand the respon­

sibibilities of a man whom you had severely reprimanded for his poor judgment? 
A: Mr. Finney, let's try and take that and break it into pieces and make 

sure we're all on the same wave length. First of all, a decision was made 
with respect to Dr. Currie th.at he would be reprimanded. He was reprimanded. 
Had the decision been, based on the facts, to exclude him from involvement 
in the Defense Establishment, that would have been decided and announced. That 
is not what the facts drove reasonable people to conclude was appropriate. 
Had the decision been made that there had been any kind of a conflict of 
interest, that might have been the case. The facts were not such. Had there 
been facts that drove someone to a conclusion that he ought to be for some 
reason stopped from participating in certain aspects of the Defense Establishment 
business, and yet could continue employment, that would have been the decision, 
The facts were not such. Indeed, the facts were such that they led me to the 
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conclusion that th~ decisions I made were the appropriate ones. They were made; 
they were announced in an orderly way. That•means that they are what they are. 
They're there, spread upon the public record, and suggestions that because of 
th~t fact someone should then subsequently be additionally penalized or his 
service altered in some.way are at variance with the facts and the decisions 
previously announced.· 

Now with respect to what occurred recently, my understanding is that there 
was a circular from the Office of Management and Budget that arrived in the 
building when I was in Hawaii or at some point prior to that; that it requested 
that an individual be designated so that the Q}ffi would have those things 
arranged by Department in an orderly way. Mr. Clements picked the appropriate 
person and so designated him. 

Q: This is a reorganization of DDR&E and I&L, right? 
A: No. It had nothing to do with anything to do with our reorganization, 

it wFs simply an O~m request to have a single person designated so that they 
would have an awareness of who it was and a single --

Q: He has not been given the procurement responsibilities that were 
formerly in I&L? 

A: He's been given exactly what the Clements letter designated as the 
result of a request by O~m for such a designation, nothing more; nothing less. 

Q: Does not the Clements letter make clear that this designation is 
a prelude to facilitate the reorganization which --

A: It couldn't occur because I haven't made that judgment. 

Q: You have not made that decision on the reorganization? Now, if the 
facts suggest that his job should not be altered in any way or he should not 
absent himself from any responsibility 

A: For reason of the reprimand. In other words, a reorganization would 
be a separate question. 

Q: I understand. W11y is he not participating in the current DSARC 
proceedings on Condor? 

A: I don't know-- have to ask Bill. 

Q: You did not direct that? 
A: Quite sure I didn't. 

'.L 

Q: Could you tell us how you went about conducting this investigation 
of Dr. Currie? 

A: The General Counsel's office did it on my behalf. 

Q: Do you know whether Defense contractors were talked to; whether 
staff aides were talked to, or were just the principals interrogated? 

A: I would want to discuss with Hr. Wiley the specific procedures he 
used prior to indicating to me what his judgments were -- before responding 
to something -- possibly Bill Greener can get that from Dick. But I 
personaJly am satisfied that Hr. t-liley has looked at it, and I agree with 
his recommendations. 

... 
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Q: Did Dr. Curr~e ever inform you since you came aboard that he had been 
approached by Defense contractors about possible jobs, and if so, did he inform 
you before this investigation was conducted? 

A: I don't recall if he's personally mentioned it to me. I've heard· 
from Mr. Wiley that he,. as well as others in the building, periodically 
get approached, and I was informed by Mr. Wiley what Dr. Currie's response 
to those approaches has been. But I can't recall whether it was Dr. Currie 
who told me or Hr. Wiley. 

Q: That would have been subsequent to the investigation if he -­
A: I don • t recall who i.t was or the timing. 

Q: Who told you? 
A: I don't recall who told me or the timing. I do recall having knowledge 

over a period of time that he, like others, is approached periodically. 
It's nothing very new in government, and I assume it's not unique to this 
business. 

Q: Could you tell us just what Currie is responsible for? 
A: Exactly what he has been; there's been no decision on the reorganization 

at all. 

Q: 
A: 
Mr. 
Hr. 

What has he been designated as? 
Do you have a copy of that circular? 
Greener: Yes I do and I can go over it with you, Bud? 
Rumsfeld: We can show you the circular. 

Q: Does he have any responsibility for procurement? 
A: What you'd have to do is look at his present job description under 

the existing directives of the building, as they've been; they've not changed, 
and then look at the circular. So he has the additional fact that he has been 
designated under that circular as having the responsibility that the circular 
requested be imposed to one individual in our Department. 

Q: Did you ever investigate whether Dr. Currie received any other form 
of hospitality from Defense contractors? 

A: Yes, that was a subject of discussion, I believe between Dr. Currie 
and me, but also certainly between Hr. Wiley and Dr. Currie during the period when 
there was discussion about the incident that led to the reprimand. 

Q: What conclusion did you come to, as to whether he had accepted any 
other form of hospitality? 

A: Oh, I'd want to go back and review the notes. I was dealing with 
four or five people on four or five different problems at the time. I know 
that to the extent-- I'm sure that there's a record of anything in addition 
that might have existed. But I know the questions were asked because they were 
asked of each of the individuals. In fact, I can recall asking questions myself. 

Q: When do you plan to make the reorganization decision, and what are 
the options vis-a-vis Hr. Currie's department? 

A: I don't have a timetable on it. Originally I would have anticipated 
that they would have been done by now. As fate would have it, some other 
events have intervened, and I've been busy with them. I kind of have been 
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reluctant to act hastily with respect to organizational questions. This 
building is not a normal management arrangement. You have the history of 
bringing the three Services in under a single department, which at least 
raises a red flag of caution about decentralization that then could contribute 
to the centrifugal effect of having the three there. And one would not want 
to make an organizational decision that was very normal and understandable 
from a management standpoint that would not fit this building because of the 
fact of the history of the prior separation of the three Services. 

The second thing that's unique about this building, from a management 
standpoint in the Defense Establishment, is the civilian military relationship. 
One has to again not necessarily always do the obvious from a management arrange­
ment standpoint because that principle of our society is one that one has 
to be cautious about following intuition and not readdressing each possible 
change from that standpoint. It's more a matter of my time, and what I've been 
doing is meeting with people on these various organizational questions; letting 
them settle in the back of my head, and then talking with people as I go along 
through various other types of meetings, and then at an appropriate time when ' 
it seems to crystalize that there '.s general agreement that a certain approach 
makes sense, announce that piece. I think we've announced three or four 
pieces thus far. I would guess that there would be some more pieces, but 
I wouldn't want to prejudge that because until I've actually decided them, 
they are certainly not decided. The specific proposals are various. There 
must be four, five, or six possibilities as to how one might adjust the 
present arrangements with respect to DDR&E, and some of them relate to I&L, but, 
as I say, there's been absolutely no final judgments made on those at all. 

Q: In answer to John (Finney), did you in effect say that Dr. Currie 
had accepted hospitality from other --

A: No, no, he asked me if he was asked if he'd accepted other hospitality 
and I said, yes, I can remember asking that. 

Q: What were the answers? 
A: That is what I said I would not want to comment on without going back 

and reviewing notes because I wouldn't want to weeks later use my own 
recollection, and, therefore, I'd be reluctant because as I indicated I 
was t~lking to three, four or five people at that time with a series of similar 
questions, one of which was that question. 

Q: Is that because you're not sure about whether he accepted hospitality 
from any contractors~ or because you're not sure of who the contractors are? 

A: It's because I have not thought about the subject for weeks, I 
would want to go back and refresh myself on what his responses were at that 
point. It's clear that there were no other instances of hospitality receipt 
which were of a nature that they would have led us to reprimand him because 
the reprimand was for the things we cited. Had there been other types of 
hospitality that were of a kind we would have included them in the reprimand 
and conceivably altered the nature of the punishment. 

Q: But you're not ruling out the possibility that he did accept 
hospitality from other contractors? 

A! That happens to be correct because I'm not ruling out anything 
because I wouldn't want to respond without going back and reviewing my notes. 
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Q: What other f-orms of hospitality are we talking about, were you 
asking about? 

A: Anything. 

Q: In the current climate of Washington that gets pretty broad, doesn't it? 
A: I guess it does. 

Q: Mr. Secretary, the question of Service recruiting policies -- racial 
policies -- has been raised again. Are you aware of the Services following 
recruiting policies which are intended to limit the number of blacks? What 
are your feelings? 

A: No, I'm not. The article, I read one I guess this morning, was the first 
one I saw, but it harked back to an earlier period, as I recall from the 
article. It's not a subject that's come up during my time here. I believe it 
was a reference to some information that may have been gathered but not --
well, I'm just going off a news article, and I find that's dangerous. But there 
was .some reference to the effect that it might have come from the Defense 
Manpower Group, and all I know is I didn't see that in my quick review of that 
report, or no one who's studied it in detail has come to me with that, nor did 
Curtis Tarr mention that to me when he·met with me. So, it's not something 
that I've had an opportunity to study. 

Q: Are you satisfied that current Service policies do not discriminate 
in (inaudible) 

A: Certainly my understanding of present policies is that they do not, but 
it, as I say, it's not an issue that has come up in the time that I've been 
here in the form that the article suggested it came up during the course of the 
Defense Manpower Commission's study period. 

Q: You mean that they didn't tell you that they kept out these documents? 
A: I don't mean to be critical of them. No, I'm sure that they have 

normal ways of communicating with the building through people they deal with, 
but my recollection of my discussion with Hr. Tarr when he met with me to 
present it -- it was a brief meeting; we discussed a variety of things but 
I certainly do not recall, and I believe I would recall, were that one of the 
subjects. . ... 

Q: Some eighteen months ago Minton Francis gave a speech in which he 
expressed the fear that with the Volunteer Army becoming a success, the Blacks, who 
had formerly been sought in large numbers, would in effect be limited by the 
Services' choosing the whites who were coming along as the unemployment rate 
increased. In effect that has happened; the percentage of Blacks did go rl"own 
pretty steadily over the last year. 

A: I'm not familiar with that speech by Mr. Francis. ·I am familiar 
with the 60s when this issue first came up when I was in the Congress. And 
that was one of the concerns during the original discussions of the Volunteer 
Army -- the idea that with a higher percentage of minorities at the lower end 
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of the economic spectrum and with the Volunteer Army that that particular 
vocation might therefore have a greater appeal percentage-wise to minorities 
than it did to whites, and that therefore you could end up with an imbalance 
in the military. That was accentuated during that period because there 
were deferments for.college and various other types of things which tended 
to exclude more people who were not minorities than were · 
minorities. So one of the issues that was debated extensively when the country 
went to the Volunteer Army was the possibility that you could end up with an 
Armed Service that was not really representative of the country, and concern 
about that. Now the fact of the matter is that I have sensed from that 
debate a general feeling in the country that there's a preference for having 
the Armed Services reasonably representative of the country, and that is 
in effect what has occurred over a period of years since the Volunteer 
Army has come in. As I say, I'm not intimately familiar with this. 

Q: You're not suggesting that there is an unwritten guide which 
sa~s that if the Blacks say 20 percent --

A: I'm not suggesting anything obviously because it's not an issue 
that I've addressed. 

Q: The term representative was used -­
A: Back in the sixties. 

Q: By Mr. Callaway. 
A: Oh, was it? I'm not familiar with it. 

Q: -- kind of talk which in effect emphasized suburban recruiting 
in order to get more people representative :of those areas that, of course, 
means more whites. 

A: I'm not suggesting anything. 

Q: Representative implies some kind of a proportional breakdown. 
A: No, I was simply commenting on a debate that took place in about 

1965, as I recall, when I was involved in this issue as a Congressman. 

Q: But that's not your policy today? ~ 
A: Three or four issues; one was the potential cost; another was the 

concern about a mercenary army -- people used the phrase; and a third was 
that there would be a military that would be unrepresentative of the country 
because of the appeal of the higher pay that would be then more competitive 
with the outside than it had been in that period which, as I recall the 
statistics, said were about SO or 60 percent of the normal civilian manpower rate. 

Q: I assume from what you've said that Mr. Francis -- when you said, 
nthat the issue is not a subject that's come up during my time here" -- I assume 
that Mr. Francis has not then raised the issue with you or accused the Services, 
as he suggested in public speeches that there is a --

A: I was not familiar with his speech, I must say, and the information 
that has come up as a result of this news article from the Defense Manpower 
work is not something that I can recall discussing personally with ~ir. Francis. 
I wouldn't want to swear to every piece of paper that's flown around this 

-~.b~:~ilding, 'l?b!.t I ,don't recall. 1 've discussed the broad subject matter at some 
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length with Mr. Francis on equal opportunity and so forth -- but that's 
related to a variety of specifics and certainly this was not a peak in that 
discussion. 

Q: Do you feel it'~ necessary to go to the Services and ask them to 
double check and see what their common practices are? 

A: It's my understanding that that information is now available in the 
building as of recently --

Mr. Greener: Within the last hour or so. 

A: And certainly I would --

Q: I mean what the policy approach is. 
A: I mean the information that came from the Defense Manpower Commission 

is now available and certainly that ought to be looked at. 

Q: I understand. But as you yourself said, that reflected past events, 
past circumstances to some degree. We're talking about the present since you 
came aboard last November. Do you feel it necessary -- are you taking any action 
to double check? 

A: I would first want to see what information has come in in the last 
hour and have somebody review that. All I know at the moment is what was 
in the news story. 

Q: I understand that you're trying to arrange a trip to two countries 
'in Africa? 

A: That's a possibility. 

Q: And you're also planning to go to the Middle East next month? 
A: That's a possibility. 

Q: These are areas not normally visited by Defense Secretaries, and I 
wonder is there any particular reason? What are the primary topics of conver­
sation in these countries? Are they arms sales or new defense agreements or 
what? 

A: No, things like-- well, I wouldn't want to rul~.r.out subjects'of 
discussion but certainly arms sales or that type of thing tend to be discussed 
in the normal channels in a fairly normal way. Certainly the continent of Africa 
and the Middle East are areas of interest from a geopolitical standpoint and 
security standpoint. The possibility of these visits was discussed extensively 
with State, and it was felt that it was a useful idea if certain invitations 
came in from several countries, and it was thought to be in the United States 
Government's interest to have me do that, if in fact it evolves. 

Q: I can't imagine you just going over there to wave the flag. There 
must be something specific on your mind. Is there some leftover business 
from the Kissinger trip in Africa, for instance? 

A: l~ell, it would be a discussion. For example, I meet with 
ministers of defense from a host of countries all over the world. I'm meeting 
this afternoon with the Australian Hinister of Defense. It isn't a matter of 
waving the flag or not waving a flag; it's a matter of discussing security 
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problems with the various people that you meet with, and certainly the 
meeting this afternoon with the Australian Minister of Defense is an 
opportunity to express the sense that I have that the Australian Administration an0 
Government of Australia have been functioning in a cooperative way from the 
standpoint of the United States defense activities, and to raise various 
specifics and discuss different problems with each other. But it's not. 
something that's unique. 

Q: Mr. Secretary, what conclusions have you reached as to what actions 
the Defense Department might take to facilitate a sale of P-3C planes to Japan? 

A: I read your arti·cle (John Finney) and I've got to say-- I don't 
know if Bill's gotten into this with you-- but the facts on that are so contrary 
to the way the article was written that I might just take a minute and make 
you aware of it. 

The article was laced with references to me. I suppose that makes it more 
newsworthy and gets it on page one, but the fact of the matter is I was not 
involved in that cable at all. It was a cable that was drafted by a person 
well down the line from me in ISA and sent, not to the Japanese as I 
understand it, but to another Defense official in the Defense Attache's 
Office in Tokyo. 

Q: Did the story say it was sent to the Japanese? 
A: I don't have a copy of it. 

Q: I think I can state on my own authority it was not; it said 
it went to the military defense advisory office there. Wasn't the cable sent 
out under the name of SecDef? 

A: Here's the article. The lead is that, "Defense Secretary Rumsfeld 
has interceded on behalf of the Lockheed Corporation in an attempt to salvage 
the troubled company's $250 million sale of a patrol craft t.o Japan ••• " and 
then it goes on. I won't read it, but my understanding is that it was a cable 
that was prepared in ISA by someone who I've never met that I recall and sent to 
some person in the Defense Attache's Office in Tokyo in response to a cable 
he had sent, and it speculated about various ways that the effort, I believe, 
that Jim Schlesinger initiated, to encourage Japan to participate to a greater 
extent in the anti-submarine warfare defense of Japan arid the waters around 
Japan. The cables that go out of this building, like the cables that go out 
of the Department of State, say, hundreds say, "SecDef." They also then 
contain an indication frequently that indicates who they're from, and this 
one did, I'm told, have a bullet right below, where it said SecDef. I don't 
seem to have it, and it said it was from some guy in !SA to someone in the 
Defense Attache's Office. It was indicated right on the cable that it was 
from that person to that person. Maybe you just didn't understand it. There's 
a --

Q: I'm an old communications officer. 
A: Is that right? Do you have a copy of the cable? 

Mr. Greener: We can get one. 

A: It's interesting. It does have it right on the top I noticed, 
but even if it had not --
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Q: I don't want te really -- really getting to the question of whether 
you, now having reviewed the issue, have reached any conclusions? 

A: I have never reviewed that issue. I certainly agree with the· 
Departmental policy that it's helpful to have Japan defense forces capable from 
an anti-submarine warfare'standpoint. The article suggested that I was altering 
some previous policy. I would want to make sure that everyone understood that 
we were not altering any policy. The article indicated that I was personally 
involved. I certainly am not personally involved. I have nothing I would want 
to say o~ the subject, except the classified cable was given to you~ and you 
printed it, and the thrust of the story was inaccurate. 

Q: Mr. Secretary, while we're in that part of the world~ earlier this year 
General Brown stated that the U.S. Navy could no longer guarantee in wartime 
the control of the seas, control of communications beyond Hawaii. In light of 
that, what will your discussions with the Australians' Defense Hinister be about 
today? Their Prime Minister recently came out with a foreign policy statement 
saying they are calling on the U.S. to maintain a presence in Asia. Now from 
what General Brown said, in wartime we won't be able to maintain a presence in 
Asia. 

A: I think that's a subject that's received a good deal of discussion internall: 
and externally. I think that the best thing to do is to stick with the unclassified 
versions of the Defense Report and the Chairman's Report on this subject. It is 
not possible with perfect precision to predict each of the kinds of scenarios that 
could evolve and then state prior to that time exactly what your capabilities 
would be in a given part of the world. It depends on what you're contending with, 
and there were several assumptions and caveats lashed onto that statement by 
General Brown that made certain assumptions and presumptions. I'm comfortable 
with the way the Defense Report reads on this subject, and that is the basis 
on which we're conducting ourselves. Do you have that (the message referred to 
earlier)? 

Q: The Defense Report mentioned Japan. It called on Japan to --
A: Right on the fifth line it says, "SecDef Washington to the Defense 

Attache Tokyo, Info to Honolulu; and then it says Confidential; then it says 
from ASD(ISA) (SA), whoever that is, to DSAA-TS --which says who it's from and 
who it isn't. It sounds to me like someone was trying to make mischief and fed you 
something to make it look like Rumsfeld was involved with· the Japanese/Lockheed 
scandal, because that's the way it played all over the world. I kept getting 
asked questions out in Hawaii as though the article was written to leave 
people with the impression that I was somehow interlaced in that, which I'm not. 

Q: I don't want to get into a. defense of my story and so on. The reason I 
asked whether you had reviewed the issue was because Nr. Greener told us that, 
subsequent to that story, that you were reviewing this question, and as to 
whether the Defense Department should take any action, and that's why I was asking. 

A: I see. 

Q: And you say now that you haven't reviewed it subsequent to the story, 
and you still haven't? 

A: I said that I didn't have anything I cared to announce. I'll tell you 
one thing I've reviewed is the format of cables. (laughter) 
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Q: What have you done on that? (laughter) 
A: I don't have anything to announce there either. (laughter} 

Q: Mr. Secretary,·can we get back to Australia. 
A: I'm sorry, I·never did finish that. 

Q: In your posture statement you in effect called on Japan to take 
over the ASH mission in the Western Pacific --

A: Well, a portion of it. We are certainly not calling on Japan to 
take over the ASW mission for the entire Pacific. 

Q: Are we in effect calling on Australia to take over the ASW mission for 
the 

A: I don't have anything to announce as far as my meeting with Australia. 

Q: Do you have anything to announce on your review of the executive 
dini'ng room? 

Q: Mr. Secretary, I would like to revert back to the previous question 
on TacNucs in NATO. · Sometime ago there was a report that there was a 
Kissinger-induced offer in the MBFR arena to withdraw some 1,000 warheads in 
NATO Europe in compensation for a Warsaw Pact offer for one tank Army. 

A: That 1 s still pending. 

Q: Do you expect that that might be on the NPG agenda and if so, would 
you care to comment on this? 

A: I would doubt if it would be in the NPG agenda, the reason being 
that the MBFR tends to get discussed in the Defense Planning Committee as 
opposed to the Nuclear Planning Group. To be perfectly honest, it tends to get 
discussed more in the NAC, meaning the North Atlantic Council, than it does 
in the Defense Planning Committee, the reason being that France frequently 
does sit in during discussions of MBFR even though they're not participating, 
and France only sits on the NAC. So when I was at NATO, all of the .}ffiFR 
discussions tended to take place in the NAC as opposed to the NPG even though 
you're right, there is a nuclear component that's on the table in Vienna. 

Q: Well., it was a NATO offer. Was the offer actually made by NATO 
itself? 

A: No, it was put forward in Vienna by the participating countries, and the 
participating countries do not include all members of NATO. They do include 
all members of NATO who are in the MBFR guideline areas, plus some other 
countries, and some other countries are not involved. 

Q: Are you concerned about the Lebanon situation? Do you feel our forces 
over there are adequate to deal with it? 

A: Well, we of course have been aware of possible requirements that 
could be imposed on the Defense Establishment with respect to evacuation, 
and we're watching the situation. No such request·has been made of the 
Defense Department. Were it to be made, we would try to meet it in an orderly 
way. 
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Q: Mr. Secretary, may I tie up one other loose end? 
A: You have been so quiet, I didn't even see you. Make this the 

last question. 

Q: · Are you sati~fied with the recruiting situation for officers in 
specialties in the Services in terms of minority groups? 

A: I indicated in my meeting upstairs for the signing of the Equal 
Opportunity Revisions in the Directive, that this is something that I feel very 
strongly about; something that I think our society has to address on a 
continuing basis, and I personally am not satisfied that we've been able to 
accomplish as much in the equal opportunity area as one would hope. I also 
indicated there, however, that I felt that the new directive would be helpful. 
I also indicated there that I felt that the Defense Establishment has a 
proud record generally in the area of equal opportunity, and has been 
somewhat of a leader in this area. I think it's important that the Defense 
Establishment has the benefit in the decision-making process at all levels, in, 
all ~omponents, of people from all parts of this country, male and female, 
minorities and non-minorities. I have discussed this subject with the 
Service officials, with the Office of the Secretary of Defense officials, 
with the military officials, and I would hope that the record of the Defense 
Establishment would continue to be a good one in this area, which means that 
it has to be better. 

Q: Your lack of satisfaction isn't directed at anything specific 
like recruiting practices, or 

A: No, because I've not addressed that. 

Press: Thank you. 
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I ' BY 1 

SECRETARY OF DEFENSE DONALD Rt.J}\SfEJ.D 
- Al' THE PENTAGON .· ... ' · .THURSDAY, SEPT~~ER 16, 1976 
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.. ·;. 

Good morning. I •ve. been kind of off the track for aboltt a month now, and 
·. I'm back at it. t would like to make a couple of comments about the Congres­

, sional situation before responding to queationa.' 

:As you know, we've been concerned about the· congressional handlin.s of 
'defense matters during the year and been working closely with the Congress 
to alter the pattern of t:he previoua period. 

' 
Seyera.l of the things that: have been heavily discussed between the Executive 

nr.,nch and the Legislative B~:anch are 'lfarious things that the Congre.:n1 bas failed 
'to authorize that the President requested; various things that they authorizsd 
that were not requested that we feel were of a lower priorlty, and therefore. 
will result in placing scarce defense dollars no't: in the highest prioritiea ar~e.s 
but in SOme things that tleed not l1ave been spent for. . 

And third. the President's major initiative for achieving some restraints 
which required special legislation to be passed by the Congress if we '"'i?.t"e to 

· achieve some.thing like $3 to. $5 billion c;,f resttiainta. ln defense s.pend:!.ng 
·in fiscal '77 and something in the neighborhood of $2.0 billion over a period 
of the five year prog~am. 

The ~restdent 1 ae you knovt• has gone back to the Congreas with a resub­
mitting authori£ation request totalling about $Z.4 billion. 

I, in the last several days, haye been enc~uraged by several actiona -with 
respece to the restraints which the President p~oposc.d to the Congres~. There 

· .. has been some progress on the rep.:.al of the so-talled one percent kicke.r; there 
has been some progress with respect to t.he ability of t:he Executive Brar:ch to 

· make some stockpile sales with respect eo certain items that are not needed 
from a strategic standpoint. We have to continue to work those matters through 
the House if we are going to achieve those savings. 

i 

The most important thing remaining before ~he Congress that the Congress 
has not yet acted on, and which I am convinced~ and I know the President is 
convinced the Congress should act on prior to adjourning, is the matter of 
the amended shipbuilding program involving specifically four additional frigates, 
the AEGIS destroyer, and the strike cruiser. · 

! 

We hnve teatlfied both before the House an1d the Senate on the shipbuilding 
·program. The ease is~ l believe, clear. The lead-times on ahipa are long, 
and it is important that: the Congresa not delay again acting on these specific · 
proposals. As you kno\\1, the. so-called Bennett Subcommittee, the Sea Power 
Subconnittee of the Hou6e Armed Services Contmittee, has favot'ably reported 
out that legislation. ' 1 
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The Defense Department nnd 

tbe'Congress and'the nppropriat~ 
on this legislation prior to the 

.2. 
j i . ' 

'' ! 

the Executive Branch is now working with 
committees to see that the ~ongress acts 
conclusion of this session.: ' . 

'. ! 
. The only other thing I'd mention from a congrer,aional ·standpoint 
involves the Militsry Consti·ucd.on .B+ll. As you Y...nm.;r, the Congress put 
an nmeudment on' that bill which would in effect have required the Executive 
Branch of the 1 Fedcral Government to waste taxpnyers' funds because we would 
be inhibited from seeing that: o;tl;' base structure is in fact adjusted to meet 
our force structure inn sensiblJ~ e.ffici(:nt, sound management m.:mner. Tiw. 
President vetoed that bill~ th.:~; Congress sustained tlw' Prestd{~nt 1 s veto. The 
House has passed a clean bill w:I.thout: that· offensive amendment and no\.' the 
Senate has proceeded to ad.d a. 'mt~Sred down version of the.t amendment to t.he 
Bill. It: Is not clenr exactly what the runendmcnt says or how it will work cut 
bat what is clear ~- that the arncndme~t dqes require a statutory 60 days 
delay w-hich would just about double the pt'cr>ent courtesy delay that exists 

' . • . . j before a base alignment decision could be implemented. n~sically it s a 
provision which we do not favor and will oppose: a;s we did the o~iginal ame.nd-
ment. 

; 

.. 

' i I . ' . 
This or~c, of courG~, lis as offensive froru the standpoint of the principles 

involved but it is a wat~rJ.d dm·;n version and therefore 1.r; more p:rec:i.eely an 
J.nstance I think, where the Gongress rath~;r than '1St:dsting us in seei.ng that we 
can e:-::pend t;he Defense d~llars in an efficien.t 'l.:;ay is inh:Lbiting us from being 

-able to spend Defense dollart:: j_n an efficient manner. \ole 're hopeful thut the · 
House-Senate conf~reJ.1ce riP r7ject that Senate amendment. 

I l '1 f 

I'll be.hap~y to respond:to questions. 
'' 
' 

I , ; 
, 1 ; I I ' j 

, Q: Th.e ques;tion • s I o~ Diego Garcia which ha,s been postponed several· times 
.--and since there has becm; an aHful lot of action nearby in Central Africa. I 
wonder if you are :a bit ~ore concerned than you used to be about the a:ltuat:lon. 

A: Well, .r would huve hoped that t:he events that have taken place in 
the world since the original discussion on lH.ego GarcJ.a, which nm-1 dates back 
I think years,. would have assi~ted some of the opponents of the Defen.se 
Establishment'.s: posit:ion; and President Ford' a position w-Ith respect to Diego 

. Garcia. of the' import.and~ of' that part of the world and the obvious value to 
tlte Unite~ St:at~a ,Navy apd. to the United States Government of having the 
eapabilit:tes that our proposal.s would provide. There is no question but that 
there has been' a good deal of act:f.vity in Africa; that the Soviet Union has 
demonstrated a considerabl~ interest in the periphery of Africa in developing 
access to porta and airfields ·and depots, and those things rece_ssary; to .enable 
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them to project power thousands of miles from tbeir shore. I don't knOt..r 
what else I could add except that --

Qt What is the status? The last time I he~rd there waa going co be 
·some aC:tion after July L Well, July i.s behind Uf:' now. \¥here is it now? Is 
it just; in limbo? : · 

'j : 
! 

I I , 
I ! . 
I 

A: As I recall, there was a provis:f.on that' prohibited expenditm:e ! 
' • i • i ' 
until a: report was filed. The report was filed. and the Department fully ' 
complied. And 1e s not on the tip of. my tongue as to exactly what took place 
after that report was filed. Do you know, Alan (tioods, ASD PA)? 

; l ' ' 

Mr. Woods: Construction continued. 
Rumsfeld: It proceeded as was previously projected pd.or to the time that 

the requirement for the report -..ras iluposed~ 

~: Hr. Secretary, looking ahead to next year. you are '!.tow in the nt:i.ddlc: 
of a budget process~ and l.apprec:l.ate no firm dE?!c:tslon has been msde, but you 
have made some overall pro·gram deciF . .dons. Does it:. now look as though you 

rc: going to have to go above the $120.6 b:tUicm that you projected as the 
cppropriadons request for next year? ~ 

A: Well, let me. make a couple of ·general conmcots on thie. I not1.ced 
an article in the paper about it• and i.t is that time: of year in W'ashington. 
l guess it has always been that t.;ray and it alw.:.<.ys; will he. We all know that 
the President announces his budget· in January. ·Aod we all knm" that the 
American people, and the readers and liat~eners of. all the people in me.dia 
will have an opportunity to know exactly vhat it h in January. And yet, for 
some reason, we alwaya seem to get engaged in leaks and metnos and autJoor:f.zed 
this. and \mauthorized that, and epeculation about what will it be, and it 
proceeds for about three months prior to the time :lt is actually released. I 
personally am comfortable in waiting until it is announced in January, but 
I suppose we will just ha.ve to .live through it li~e t~c. have in pt~evious years. 

Point number· one. w'e obviously don't knm..r what he will announce in January. 
Point number. two • normally he wJ.ll get involved personally in that process :i.n the 
November-December period. He has been involved tb some extent thus far, but not 
extensively in the defense budget, and probably will not focus on that until 
the November-December period. 

: What "'e are now going through is, as you pofnted out', the norllk1.l part 
of the process where after the announcement of onfb budget the process of 
preparin~ the next budget begins, and it continue~ kind. of at a low temperature 
for a while. And then OMB goes out to the departments and agencies with various 
preliminary figures. They then come back to them normally with higher 
preliminary figures. A taffy-pull takes place over a period of months. 
and at some point the President <tnd the Cabinet: official involved site down and 
sorts it out with the Director of OMB, and we hav~ a budget. 

No~, anyth.!ng I said would be pure guesswork with all those caveats. The 
· answer to your quest:f.on is, I would guess, yce. I would think it would be 

somewhat over.$120.6. How much over it I really qon't know. I really, very 
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·sincerely do·not· know.; Iidon'~reven know what I'll~recommend at this 
point •. :But what you do is; you 11ook at what your projection: wasllast time, 
which presu'm~bly was bat>ed,onsqmething\substantive~ as indeed itlwasi you 
look at wlwt 'is ta1d.ug pl~ce. in ithe int~rlma from :the st:andpoint of suc.h 

• things as inflatlon, trom~ the st~ndpaint of what Congres$ did or did not do 
by way of authodzin.z thosn things thait ·you felt were necessary from the 
standpoint ~f y,~ur progranu1, in'this Gase national securi~ programs. 
You· look at,. again :f.n the 1case of this Department, those things.that the 
Congress fa:Ued. to do witll l."espect to imposing restraints which required you 
then to put funds away frQm htg't\er prioiity areas into lesser pr:l.ority areas 
and :again '·d7grade nationat secuJ:iity cap~bilitiea from· those which you bad 
projected in your fiscal ~977 'b~dge.t •. ! , . 1 .' . . 1 1. , : 1 

: ' : ' i· ': I I' .I ' ' : 'I . . . ! : '. : ' : ' i 
! ~d tb.oe>e· thi~18S te~d 'to ! me out .as addition.-'11 in~rements ·of some 

so.rt. Now,. ,wh.a:t portion of th~ I' 1.\ end up .recolllUlending to the President 
sometime later this. year I am no't in .a tJosition to say at the present time. 
We are working with' the var.ious, ~ervices on it* and if the. procedure works 
anything .like it did last year, 1 it at some point then in November, presumal,ly, 
or early December will make: my fi.t:t.nl judgments. We will then send them to 
the ;President. !Titia is aft.er th~ Comptroller t s Office has its budget. scrub • 

. Then. ,we will s~nd them to the ;t'f}~aid(mt. OMB 1orlll agree or disagree, most 
like:ly disagree as they always do; we ~.rill then meet with the Preside~t, and h.e 
win' make his judgments. !Rut 'that. very, likely would be in l>ecember, JCJhu. 
. l ' ,· . ' I . ! ·. I\ I .• l i i I ·.; ; ' ! : . ' ' i' . ' ; . ; ' ·. \ . 

' : Q:. , Cou1d I just' follow :,upi quickly? The 120.6, as you ;recall, took into 
;H;count anticipated infl.atfion.: aj:td .1 think t.hat inflation ha~ been held at what 
· ;• anticipHted. So that •sho~d! not be a factor drtving, up your request.. ·Tha 

L<~r concerns. nuch nG cdngre!ssil(nal ~lction oi inaction,. :tn that: going to add 
d:~ the order of $8 bilU~ to !th~<i defense budt;et for n~.xt year? . : · 

' · A: Oh,. I vouldn"t even ,bili!gin to specu1ate what :l.t wHl. Congress i~m't 
out: of ses.;si.on,. .no.d I havd not made my j udt,'111Cnt:B. • l just don't have any idea. 
The other tld.n~t xou have t:o b~ eareful on about tirls~< and I,supl'ose. we are -
as· I say,. I don. 11 t find thi,a p~rt:leular- discussion very useful b(l-cause w-e 
lm.OY tl1atl we are going to kncwi in. Janm!lry what it is and why we have to massage 
it l.-eekly' bet\>'een now and 'tb.eni is not completely clear to me:.. But one of the 
things that ought to be kept iD. :~rld when we thinkabout what we. have w-ritten or 
what I have. said today and, look back on it two .. tiu;ee, four,. five weeks from 
DIY.d • or twO mouths from now, 1,$; that question of ~at' itt Bin tbe defense budget • 
You \i'ill recall there: was some' quest.i.on also o.bout what portion of rettremant 
funds should be ·in the de'fense· budget. And the Senate and Rouse put some 

l 1 • 

ln:nguage in on that~ · So final figures ltdg.bt or nigltt not bear .any relationship 
necesRarlly to figu:ces tllat are being Ucl'..e.d arm.md now~ Becauae you might have. 
s001.e things in that ;t:hat we~.~m:~~jin ~efof' e,. ~-· som.;e: thing~ not in tha~ were in 

before. I 'j :· t l . ; i\ ll . . . ! . '. ! . : 1 ; . : : . 

Q: 'Aren't l ~ talk~ 1 a~o. ~ fine bming tbo~gb? Haven't y~ se~t. out a 
memo to· the Service Ch.iefa: teLl.i~g them that t.bey can plan on. a budget, over the 
next year and t.bree. or four subaequent years,. five percent: greater! than tl1e 
figure thnt h.c"ld been previ008ly projected? l 

A: i Yell,; tbe wo.y I would describe. what: has b-een sent out to tbe ·Services 
is that which is. sent out to. t:be Services every year about: thi.s t;tme, and what it: 
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is~ 1w an indication, were the figures to be abou:t like this, hoN· 'l<lould you 
at'range your progr.Gro. Tboy came in originally aay:i.ng, "here's what we want." 
Now, you go back and say, "Well. what if you did it somewhat differently?" Then 
they come back in and say, "Wall. we don't think ~-1e oufiht to do it quite that 
differently, although maybe this r,;ay." And then you go back out about last 
week. or whenever it was, and say,· ""'ere it to be about this amount, how would 
you arrange your programs '! 11 i · 
t·' i ' ' ' . '! j : 

I;' I Then of ~ourse you: end up adding those things together at some point. 
:The Comptroller's Office llnd the OSD and the Services end up scrubbing those 
budgets. and they n.ormally scrub them b)r a number of billions of dollars, aa 
you know. And then there i.s a series of final meetings and sessiot'lS where 
yo1.1 do· what you're ta.lki11g about: ie fine ·tuning, which is where you make 
judgments, how much you really -- you know what Congress has done by then, 
'and you begin to make judgments as to what you think should be reconLTllerided to 
,the President. . ! · 

r: I 

Q: .But every year· about 
l' 

this time you come up with a gross target figut'e 
. 'area. And this year is it -­

A; nut it is very. prelim:tnary. 
t' 

Q: It is prel:tminary~ but you usually fine-tune that. And now. isn't 
the target figul'e about $9 or $10 billion <3bove what had been previously planned? 

A: I just absolutely ref~se to get into the subject. First of all~ it is 
jall a matter of -- it :t,s the President's budget.· \fuat he announced in January 
;is up to him. He has not focused on the subject at the present t.i~e. \ole 
:are at 4 very ear.ly atage of it. I am a big boy, l know people m~e going to 

. · . end about running around whispering to somebody, :, "This is what is going to be. 11 

or' 11 they are going to try to get their program in or out,." or hurt somebody 
:else'" or help somebody else's by leaking something to the pt'ess. Some of it 
:will be true, some of it won't be true. Hy strong recott~mendation is .that people 
:look at the broader pieces and the broader policy \llhich you understand, ".rh1ch 
iyou can get from the reaponsibla.people in this building, and not chase nll that 
stuff. · • · 1 · I 

' . r l 

Q: But you said you guessed it would be above the $120.6. 
A: ·Yea •. lte asls.ed me a straight, flat que~tion. I aaid. "Sure, I would 

.guess :tt W'Ould be above 'that, depending on what fongress did and eo forth.n But 
:I· have no idea how much.' , 

Q: Do you guess it would be substantial? 
'A: I .a~ not goin~· to guess beyon~ ~hat. 

I ' ' • 

~ ' 

• : . - ·, . • I 

· Q: A question on .broad policy. The budget has to have the caveat that if the 
SALT'i:talks do not get anywhere, that you ti'ill have to take ce:rtain actions. 
Have you reached that po:f.nt where you have more or less de~ided what certain 
actions you will have to take if 1o1e don't have a· SALT agreement, a SALT II 
agrecment'l A question of the M-X program -- : . . 

A; Let me get right back to that. I had ~ thought floating around in my 
head. I will.give you another example of one of· the tl1ing~ that interacts. 
B.e8idea the fact that the Co.ngr.ess put in language last year concerning 

· retirem~nt and how Y.ou Qp.tically -- where you optically put it in the budget • 
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thcre'is a second thing that is floating!around, and that is the question as 
to 'Whether or not the. Defense DepartmenL .should apply inflation to the 

'O&M account. ' 
1 
•. 1 .. : · · 1 • · · ~ : 1~ : · 

! > • t l : = f t 

·; i And tf yo,!' will re:cai 1: ln~t ~~ar 's estimate ~d~c~n ':t. ~pply ~ttflation 
t:o' the O&M account, this year's 1egishition requireg ·that you apply inflation 
to the O&M account. 1t ruru.>unts to a substantial sum of money, John,. as 
yo,u knotJ. So there ia another r¢aaon that I think • 1 t i.a going to be very 
easy during this period for people 

1
to trip all over themselves. 

. I •: ; . i . . . . . ; , i 
Going back to your question, there were~ you. are right,; three caveats 

in l::tst. yenr 1 s budget. One involved the shipbuilding area~ one involvoo the 
fact that the President impooed .th~ restr:-aints, and he said he would come back 
st them if, in fact, they ;failed to pass the restratnta en'abllng us to save 
the !ll£)rtey because he W<.t8 convinced that to reverse. those adverze trends 'WC had 
to have that money •. · The third area \~as in SAL't. Now, what tvill evolve in 
SALT beween notJ and the time the President puts tl1e fiscal t78 budget to 
bed an.d the five-yc.ar plan that: folluws thereafter; I don't llave any idea. Thhr(!, 
has been nothing thus far .in· SALT that would affect :tt beyond that which we 
have already announced con:cet"ning the desirability of malntaining the 'Hinuteman 
line open. As you know, the SAf ... T interim agreement expires in October of , 77" 
That is about a year from next month. And cer~ainly the President has said 
repeatedly that he .intends to work, for a SALT II asreement followinf.i..on the . 
Vladivostock understanding) nnd :would anticipate that it would be s~rnething 
that, if it is a.chievab1e 1' would be achievable prior to the October'~'.' 77 period. 
No'.r~ wh::tt kind of events could. intervene bet'rreen novr and then that could affect 
the budget, I can't. speculate about. But you are quite right, there could be 
events that could affect the budget. 

1 ) 
{ '• 

' ' . 
i Q: There is one thing that Jimmy Carter and Defense. executives seem to 

agree on, and that: is that .the mijitary reserves ai:e in t'!onsiderable trouble, and 
your ovm. people's co.ucerit i.s focused on the fact that they are not filling 
t:h-a nn:.kc ss youn~ ffi-.."'tt. fulfi.ll t.h~ir obligations incurred t some of · t:hem 
to get out of the draft, they arc, not staylng in the units, and you are way down 
in numbers. ' · · ' 

. ' ; 
'! j i' ) 

My question is~ given the fact that you have this total force concept as: 
a keystone of national defense nowadays, and the center of gravity in some 
respects ha.s moved to t:ne'reserves. have you'done anything from your level 
to try and remedy the situs.tion, or do you not consider it a t.op priority problem? 
How do you come down on that1. 

A: Hell; uumber one, :f.t clearly is important, given the \•Jay we have. 
arranged ourself from a security standpoint in the United States \dth over a 
period of ye.ars reductions iu total men ~nd women in the armed forces from what­
ever it was, 3.5 million I believe in 1968, 2.7 million in '64, down to 2.1 

I . 
million toda.y, with a higher emphasis and focus. as you suggent~ on the reserves 
and the importance of the reserves in a crisis situation. Given the continuing 
need to sec that we have our reac'·vcs at the proper numbers, operating, 
efficient~ ready. using eq,nipnrcnt that reasonably approximates that which they 
would use in a mobilization, it obviously is an important area and something 
that merits my attention and 10 in fact, gets my attention. I 
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: 1 have met with the heads of' our reserves for' the various Services. 
I met:, I believf! it was th:t.s week or lat.c last week, w'i.th thr! Reserve Policy 
Board headed by Mr. Sle'zak. It is someth:l.ng that we have been discussing 
in tb,e meetin~s thnt have been held in connection \vith the fiscal t78. budget, 
and certainly requires, just as does th11 active force -- you know, we -recently 
went in with various repro~r.ammings concerning, and in fact a budget amendment 

.. aa w~ll ns reprogramming, concerning rect;uiting to r.take the All Volunteer 
Force work. And that ie th<! kind of thing alao that -requires that one look 
at it month to month to see· what the number. a at:e, and ho~.,r you· are doing, 
and that you in fact are providing the ldndo of i.ncentives and management 
policies that you are getting tho people· you need. ·As the thiue; dips • you 
have to go back in and see, that you move it up and get it back where you 
want it. · 

' . . 
: Q:· Well, are you doing anythine heyond just.·addressing the dimensions 

of the problem? Have you got any kind of: specific legislation, or task force 
study, or is there an.ything that l>.•ould indicate the d0.gree of your concern? 
Or maybe you 1n·e not concerned; T. don t t know.. · · 

A~ r indic;.>ted l was concerned, and v·e have been working on the 
problem. I don't hr;ve anything I. am in a position to announce at the p-reEJent 
time. 

Ql ll.'hat is your curnmt aasesamt~nt of the S?vict ICBMs in terms of HIRV 
deployment and the accurncy of. MIRV$2 ' 

· A: I noticed in reading one of Alan's presa'briefings'that the question 
· . came up concerning an updat:c kind of .i11 the Soviet HIRV and missile pr,ogr~s. 

I would rather not ·give you a cursory kind dr a thing. And maybe ~vhnt we 
ought to do is come back ne:J.t week and go into it ;:Ln svme detail. I would be 

; 

hap-py to do that. 
. .. 

I could do it today~ but rather than give ydu a couple of short answers, 
I would prefer to do it when we have 15, 20 minutes and'have a chance to 
e.Xplore it some with you., 

,. . 
to that list in .. addition to ICBNs? Q: Could you add the SS-20 

A; I have. I've noted 
the SSX-20 is deployed. We do~'t 

some confusion :tn the press as to t.1hether. 
have any eviden~e that it has been deployed. 

Q: You don t t have· 'any evidence that it has: been deployed? 
A: That. it has been deployed as of this moment. no. There is no question 

but that it ia ready for deployment. That has been our view for some period of 
time, that it was approaching deployment. We don't have evidence at tha 
present time that it actually has been deployed. 'He anticipate it very shortly. 

f 
Q: ·xs there a 

Control Agency? 
conflict there between your assessment and the Arms 

A: No. Basically what they 
January. I didn't detect anything 
in any way at all from what I sent 

said was what I said in my Defense Report last 
different in the ACDA statement that ·varied 
up to the Cons.resa. 

.... 

Q: The ACDA reported indicated the missile was deployed. 
A; Was it? Is that where the difference came? ~lat was the interpretation? 

I hav~/forgotten the issue. 
! 
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! i Q: That it'was being deployed. 
. A: No. I tliought the issue came on the ACDA statement, .that it left some 

people with the ixt1pr'ession that some of the older Soviet missiles were being MIRV'd 
as opposed to being replaced by MIRV systems. . ' 

• ' I •; 

I i I f 

The latter is thecase~ not t:he former~ But l: don't believe that ACDA 
~~s incorrect because my recollection was that it w~s just a misunderstanding 
from it. I~ is MIRV systems replacing older systems, n?t MIRVing of older syste~q. 

Q:' Mr. Secret~ry, getting down. to som~ hum.tln· terms here today, is the 
Defense Department conducting any studies about howmuch they eave by keeping 
people on active duty or letting them have leave tilne and tlu~n come back to 
active duty to f:f.nish out their military careers? ): am referring particulsrly, 
are you checking anything. to see how much you gain ~y keeping c-..aree.r women 
on after pregnancies? · ,,.; 

A: I do not.know the answer. 

Q: i Do you think it might be worth:while in making some eort of a study 
of that? I . ' 

A: . I do not know. Let me check it. 
. . . : 

. i . . . 
Q:' .. I think the Stars and Stri.pt!s, or somebody has pr:f.nted some stuff in 

the past month about .. how many man-hours they lose. I just wonder hm• much 
i.h<!Y gain. · · , · 

A~ I just do not know the answer. I will be _glad to· get into it. 
i' 

'' i . ; 
Q: Mr. :Secretary, what have we learned fr~~ the MIG-25 so far? 
·A: The MIG-25 is in the custody of the Government of Japan and under 

. · the control of the Government of Japan and is be:i.ng handled by the Government 
of Japan. They obviously recognize,. as everyone iQ the world doesf that it i.s 
an in~eresting aircraft~ and that examination of i~ conceivably will provide a 
good deal of information. . It seems to me that from the standpoint of the 

· •- in fact, I noted that the Japanese Defense Admiriistrator made a statement -­
is a UPI clip that ~ just: got - indicating that they do consider it t:heir . -
responsibility to 1~arn fully· the capab!litf.es and . functions of ap.y weapons · 
that. they consider posing a potential threat to Japan's security. 

' I ' 

I go into that preliminary way of saying that lllY interest ohvioasly is 
apparent, and it is to avoid doing or saying anything that would be unhl!lpful.' 
And for that reason, it strikes me it is probably preferable to leave the · 
responses on this subject concerning the pilot, vho i.s now in tbe United States~ 
leave the responses to the Department of State, whO is in charge of hun. a.nd 
leave. questions concerning the aircraft itself to the Gove'l:lJlllellt of Japan, -who 
is in control of it~ · 

: ' 

~ Q: Do we plan to fly that aircraft? 
' A: My interest is seeing that the information that is obviously 

pote~tially available as a result of the availability of that aircraft to the 
Government of .Japan 10 that ;that information is maximized. And it seems to tt~e 

this 

tl~t the most constructive thing l can do to assur~ that is to not complicate the 
d:f.plomatic situation that exists between the Government of Japan and the Soviet 
Union on the subject. ' 

-' ' ! 
. ; 
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I, 
. ! i. 

MORE 

I 
j 
1 

'· 



j I, ,I 
I t I 

,. 
' I 

; {' 
I 

I' . ' ' ' I :., 
I. 

' I. 9. 
, I . 

Q: Did you mean to any that you are going to hold a special press 
conference on. the Soviet ICBM, or simply answer the qul!'st:f.ons of the reporter 
who asked the question? Is there golng to be an open hearing? 

.A.: Iffthere is broader interest, I woulo be glad to do :l.t in a press 
conference. We can do. it .sometime ne.xt week or the week afte-r, in a. period 

·. ·innnediately ahead, sure. ! · 

Q: Have we looked at the. HIG? I mean, have·American experts looked at 
that 11IG? Have they been ,invited by Japan to go and look at it at least? 

A: I have responded on that question. It is an intelligence question. 
I think there ought to be e reasonable degreee of understanding in view of 
the fa.c.t that it is an intelligence question. It is obviously an issue that 
is between the Government of Japan in this. ins tanc~ and the Soviet Url.ion. 
The Gover0;.1tent of Japan is holding press conferences on the subject and discussing 
it. ' . . . 

' . 
Q: Not if the Japanese invit:e us, then we aT:e ill.to it.' You know, 1-f they 

invite us to come and look at 
the question is legitimat~. 

it,· then our government is involved. .And I think 
' '·. 

! ~ 

Q: Ithought, in fact, 'that they had .invited us to look at it• 
' ., . 

Q: Can't we at least say we accepted the invitation? 
A: At the·moment I :don't have anything to a~d to what .I'vE! said. 

·, Q: Didn• t they invite us and didn't we send somebody? ' 
' A: At the moment, ~don't have anyth.t.ng to fdd t:o what I have said. 

! 

I 
1 
I. 
l 

Q: Mr. Secretary, if that MIG bad been landet:l at an A..11erican airport rather 
than in ·Japan, could it have gotten in un.der radar. and been undetected for as 
long as it \vas going into th!i! ai.rport in Japan? 

A: I am speaking from second or third hand here and basically off press. 
reports. But my understanding is that the MIG-25 was in· fact detected by .the 
Government of Japan, that some planes were either,' I believe they were launched 
to see what the radar was showing up witht and that then there was a period 
when the MIG apparently through various tactics, its altitttde and location, 
waa able to get lost, and weather and terrain. In any event, my understa.nding 
ia ther~ was not a connect1on between the planes th<.lt went up and the M!G 
prior to the time it actually ar~ive~ near the airport. 

: i 

Now, as all of us know who are familiar ldth. rauar and tracking and 
these air defense types of things, that that is the kind of thing that can happen. 

·A s,ingle plane can, in fact, from time to time do that. 

· · . Y9u are asking what .would .b~ 't'he case with ~¢spect. to the United States. 
As you ltn~, the United States does not have extensive air defense cap:abilities, 
and has not had for some years.: : 

: 
l f.\, 

.. Q: Are you sayiug that the evasion was due. to tactics :of the pilot. 
or other evasive maneuvers, and perhaps the use of electronic gear? 

A; l know nothing about the latter. I have: just been advised that the 
assumption is, and as I ~ay. and my recollectio~ is this came from press reports, 
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. . ' I! I t i : ' ! 
that the pilot when it.became clear he waa in radar contact vent do.m ton 
lOw level. r know qothing· a~out •ny· equipment beins used. 1 

t: , ,. i .j ."; \, · ... ; : 1 i :I ,! l . :; 

!j. Q: The anrwe.r t:o his\ que~t1Qn . then itJ yes~· because of our lack of 

l ~e:~n•::t•O j;,k~ tMo !c~L.: h~~v:r,: as to t~t~er a MILS ie a threat 
to. tho United States or not;. boe8 it have the range, the paY,load, the cep:tbllity 
or anything else to be a threat? lle are t:alld."l nonsense .when we are talk:l,.ng 
about HIG-Z5s attacking the United State•. · i · I • 

At. Were' you referrin3' to a MIG-25 doing it Itt the United States·. or 
were you referring to an airplnne_t· 

; . ' '' I f • . , ' . . ; i l < ~ ~·1 ; i • I 

Q: I 1 was referring' to an airplane. ~ ·; 1 
i.• . A: . I• thought, he was referring to an airplane. You at:~ qu:i.te, were it 

. a l.JIG-25.: . · 1 I : . I • : . . • ' . ' ' j 
', - ; : l ; i : I ~ ; ; I ;~ r i . , . ~ . i f ; 

' ' I t j I 1 ! ~ l : I I : I ' ~ ~ 

. Q: Mr. ·se~r~t&ryj cov1d you bring us up .to date on 'where you stand on 
the investigation of the alleged destruction. of records :tn Iran when aupp~)Sedly. 
according to. the press rep9rt. a.nyhm.7, the inquiry was underway as to how we 
had been spending' nion¢y at, the U.S. mission over ~here. You: have been reported 
as being upset abodt tlie destruction of the records and had order a report. 

A: You •re P,~n r:f!ght: I r ,was. I i 
' , , i. :· I . i . : ' i , 

~: Can y(m just :give us· the chronology of that and where you stand? 
A: Well,. I c,ton' 1; 9av-e the date~~ I This is I ' . ! . 

~omething where there is .nn' investig<ltitm underway obviously,., so it: require.s 
a degree of judicial restraint on my pt$:'t~ But! there was a jmonth. and let~s 
estimate that it W'~S probubly in July •. [ would guess. So'!ne weeks ago,; that I 

' , . . I 
bet::..rune aware of some questions involving this .•• ' : 

Q: Invo1Ji~~ wont?, l : 1 

,, • .. ~ .' 

1 

' ' ·A: That relate to.t:bis issue of ·the possible, destruction of records 
' ! - I - 1 , ; ! 

involvl,.ng some questions:t;:oncern:tng military sale~ in· Iran.: And my attitude 
with rf<spect t:o it: \\'as simila.r t:o my attt.t:ude with 1·espect to anyt:hing of that 
nature' is, 'that l(a) t:here dan' well ought to be an investigation; and (b) to 
.tbe extent. that ltliere isianything wroog that involves civilians, the Depart:reent 
of Justice should be ask~d

1

t:(J get involved promptly, and to:t:he extent it 
.involves military personnelt~ th~· Uniform Code of Military .Tu.stice has plenty 
of provisions to take care . of it.. i . i · ' 
. • r , . :' . I , l ·, . ' . . • ; . i. : 

, j Q: Do th~se: invol1re 't:he sale. of arms . to I Jan, these records? ' 
. , .A: No, they. involve: financial aTra.ngements between t}le Unit<-~d States 
' .... d.Ir· · ~ i t :,• ~ . . ... n . , .au. . f j' 

.. · : IQ> kith reg~rd: ~ol t~e 1 ~~~e of arms? [ 

· i ··:, ::: . Posaibly not with regard to the sale of anas. 1 
: '

0

' 'A; '!:~'tn~! ~d.+~ ~t involves an . ~stlg»ti , and 1 am not 
going to get: into it. lfe· wanted me to sti.y it. I didn•t wdat to say it.. Let 

; me· fi.gurc i.f l can find 1a Jiay t:o say it t:l1at it ~.·.· ocsn • t hav.,'e any hooks on it. 
!.or holes. in it. . . I : I · .. · ' : . · l 
i; I :/> . I ; . ; ' I I II f ' ' : ! ; I ' I 

l l I . I ' I ' : ' • ~ : 4 ! f , ' ' t ' ; 1 
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.. · ·. ':Q: .Well~ oee therb is' d littl~ ·differ~:tnce 1
between what· you juh 3aid and 

~he press reports; uamcly, -whe.ther we are talking about r.ecords about money 
I , ' spent by indi\•.iduals overse.:;u~ on your. mission, ot as you said, money. as t:rnna-. 
acted .between Iran and the. 'Pe.nt<igon. or whatevE!r. ' So i.f you

1 
could ju~c help 

·us be precis• on it. . j ; : :: , ; .i i • : · ~ . : : ' ' 
j A: :I probably should hot .have used .the phrase "arm sales. n The reason 
:r said it 'is because ohviouoly. ~e do have variou6 • transactions w:l.th tran 
concerning '(>;eapona. The; fact ,that there. is an 1rivest:f.gation suggest~ th.e 
turth; namely,; that I don'~ know all the facta. 'Were we pre~>ently appri.sed 
of every a&pect of the situation, the invrzstigation would tlot need to be 
underw~y or would have been concluded •. It ia not concluded. It is still 
continuing. I, don't knotv quite how to de.scrib~ :Lt, to tell you the truth. It 
'involves the question ofi som~e Americans hnndling ,'of some recorda and. nome money 
_in connenction with Ira.n!. . ~d f jthink, ~hat is a 

1 
pre£ectly adequat~ way to 

put it. , , I · ,', · ' ·. . • · . : · · · · · · · · · · 
. - ; ' • ' . : I '. ! : . : . I ~ I· ' l ! ; ~- ! • I .. j f l l{ . { ; ,; l ; 

i ,Q: : You ~an'~ rulel ~~t·!: th~~ 'it 'c~ri be conne(.'.ted: with ~rms Gales? 
j iA: : How kould you ~iwwer. that. Alpn7 i £ j i 1 ( :· 

;. 1 I ' j' ' i ; ; . l ·: .:. : .. i ' : ) . ., _I : ' ; . . ' . : 

'' :, ·Hr. 'Wood~J: I. don't'believe ·there has been;~my indication thus: far that 
· ·· ·it is conn~c te~ to arms sales. : , : 1 • 

. } ~ . ) ; l ' :' ' ; 1: ' ~ I ; :~ ; ' ~· ; I i f ! i ·, ; . :,1 
: \' : 

•. } !1 ,i ' ' . ' ~ . l , , : • ; • ~ . ' 1\: I ! I j · ' · ' 

' I, ' Ai · l· have not Heen; any indication that it; ia connected with a~ros sale.s 
' . ' , I : . ' . . , 

except someone; could say anything to do ~·r!.th Iran 'is connected Hith arms seles 
because the pepple invol!v~i might 

1
have. been .. :Bur thE- mane~ is not to my 

knowledge. l , i , : .. . , : ; i ! r 1 ; 1 

f Q• Is: i!t ~oney '~~at: d~~~·app~?a,red and .un~~cb~.{nted ·for-i: Has somebody run 
off with money.? · · ! ' ' .. . ·, •. i · : l · I ' 

! i: A:. No~ ~·i am not goiilg, to makel any alle~adons.; I run just simply saying 
flat out there is an invest~gation involving some Alllericans ln connection 

; with some money, in connection ,,d.th some rela tionshipt> bett-reen the United States 
. ' ' ' l . . . • ' ' 
an~ Iran, and ;the inveatigati9n is undcn.:ay. ; · · 

• ·: i .1 . ' :' . I j ; :1 i : ; ; . ' J ; : ~ 
, ; ; · ;Q: Youjinade a refer,ence a minut<:. ago to the Departm~nt of Jn~tice. Are 
'they imrolved•now aside· from.t:he ·-:-! . . ,: 1 i .· , ·, 

1 

' f ! .A: I did nC>t say tb~y (..ere involved, nor ~id I I link them to this case • 
. il said my react:ion in this' case'1·: as it is in all cases 'involving allegations 

or; the possiblity of any wrongdoing whatsoever. : It is number onG. that there 
8hf>Ulcf be an' fpveatiga-tion:~ ! this is' my Gener:al ~Utnsfeid t s :rule. 

t . ' . ' J I . • p ! _I I ~ ; I . 4 ' ! I ' • 

·; ! r : ' . : ! ~ · , · ~ ! 1-- . : .. ;- ' ! , ·! _ ; ~ : 

1 . Number tfo ~ that. if. i~· involves civilians,: obviously the· Department of 
1Justice is th~ Agency of th~ Gov~rnment that has. the responsibility for 
)handling wrongdoing or vi.olations'of law. And in the event it involves 

;my~tary per.s;nn~l· we ~a~et:~nf~ori Code of!Mi~~tarf: Jus~ice ~or ~h~t purpose. 

' ' ' '.Q: But'jhas the DE7partm¢nt: beep brought 1 :f.ntq it~ Department of Justice 
·, be~n l;lrou·ght fnto this case't · 1 · ; . ! · ,' ! . i : : ' · 

' ·:A: The :investigation i.s still proceeding,· :Andi as I :ind:i.cated,. the first 
~ th.J.n~ you do, is h~ve. an .i,nvEistt~J,Jtion. That fa p~ocE"eding~ , i 
,; ' : ' • ~ t i ' . I I. . I· ,, ' I : ; i ; ' 
f. ' ' , · I I Jl : • . ., ~ r · , . ' • , • . , • : , • . I 

H : :· :: :Q: ·Is it An investigation~ only by Defense Department people?! 
:· : . . ;A=· ;~t.;~he 1 presellt t:tme --well, and Servic~. :l 

" : i '' j! ,' i ,, 1 : i li l ! I I .. ! ! ' ' MdRE 
!J 1.' 1 ; i l ( I, 1 ' I ., ' i ~ : ; ~ ' ' I ! !. f '! l 1 ' '. I ~ j 
1 ~ ; ' • \ :) : ' .•• J 
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ll ' . l ' ' J j ' ' ' ' . ' ' ' ' 'I . ' . I 
\;. Q: . Peop~e. representib.g 1 the Defense Department on the ~hole?' · ; 1. · 
~~ A: Technicall~~ye.s.; 1!;' 1 ! i, 1, .. [,:;'I;··~,, :1 

. . , 1 • • ·,; • ! . 1 1 : ! •I · 1 ; i 1 r 1 1 '. • ! · t · · • 

1
1
' ... Q: ;. : Not 1 q~b.ple repxksf!n~ttng 1 th~ D~. pn.rtment ~f 'Justice 'it~vestigabing? 

·h . 1: A: 1 Wellj: I don't think anyone~ outside the Defense- Establishment· is 
eonn~cteq wit;~l} if at the presEm .. h time. ' ' . ! I 'i; ·, ': ! ·, 1; . 

. '. ' l I I I i . I ; ' I I I l ' I fi ·~ . ! . ! ::. . . ; I . 
t:' ' ~:I Bac~i b~ ~qt:are ,one f::O make' sure we are ~n· the' right wave length here. 
You sa1d.init~ally, JUSt 1in;case tt is not right~jthat the investigation was 
prompted. by ~·por>sible destruction of records concerning military sales." Now 

' I ' 
we want ~o say the possible' des~r'+ction of record~ .-- i. ; 

'; . :; A:': I~v~i~ins smn~ !Am~~u~~~. and! in~olvingrinoney, an~' in connection with 
the ~ndividuals relati.ooshipsi wit~ Iranians, ~r ip Iran, beciause it may not 

bf ~ith the Gov~e~~ent a
1
·l :~ir· t ! 1• 1 1 , l. : , ; j 

1 , · I I ! · 1 1 . ; . · 

r·. Q:. One other un~~~ari situation. Are you ittvest:igating if I under-

.. 

' t . ' 

' i 
I 
! stood ••hat you saidp this trlay \>e a little d:iffert:nt than what was Si;iid last 

night .. Are you investigatih~ only· the records situation,. or trnnaactione as i 

""'
11!: In tryi~g.' t~ get JhJ JJn ~g inv~lved clear! in my recll;ecti on here, roy I 

recollection is that there was .some investiga.tion taking place of an audit ·,1 

:1ture) and it• was. during ~he; course of that that: ·the issue 'of destrdction of record::: 
tame' up.· So I trouldn' t wa~t 'to exclud~ anything other than the destruction ! 
of ·records: · • 1 · I • d ' · r , · t • 

~ ' , ' II ~ ~ ·1.: ! : t,, '. : ' 

t . i ·; ' 

i Q: How much money·are \i..Te talking about? 
: A: ~ 1 don 1 t want to get• :.tnto it. Then~ is an 11wes~igati()-n go~ng on, 

and we are,going to findiotit:; , I , t . : ! ' ' . ' ; ~ t ~ : 
. · Q: l;lr. Secretary, 'ue have skirted the issu'e of the Soviet Union's present 

threat. vn~at is that threat now? Has it diminished since the spring of the 
year when were talking about budget? 

I ' 
.i A: tfho. skirted it? ! ', · 

_ • . Q; ~r~11 ~ :I ._mean; 'tt;Jy J ~e have talked about ICRMs and so forth. 
; ' 'A: You mean. thereJ haven't been any questions on it. 
l , . . l : i I ' 

Q:: That.' s right. ; . ; , ' ' 
A: Okay. Lees lay: it right· out on the table and get it straight; • 

. i ' . ': ·, : 
Q: COnsidering that' budget for next year. :has the So'/iet threat been 

·included in that? Do we still need additional funds as we did in the spring 
of this year for the Soviet.threat? Is it still :going on at tile same pace 
as it was ;in the spring?~ j ' 

A: Oh, absolutely. And that is why the President put the budget up hk did 
in January;· that is why we' hnve been pressing the Congress to get that. budget 
passed; that is why the budget that will go up in January of next year for 
fiscal year 1978 will do. as the President has :f.rj.dicated repeatedly~ and I 
haV'e indicated repeatedly, will try to set thls country on a path over a sustained 
period of time so that those. trends will not continue' because the.y are 
.fundamentally unacceptabl':!: to the security of this country. 
. ' ' ' ; 1 . (; '! . 
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! , , l'h~ point 1~hat ~ hav• ~aJe. ;t~ the ~~nsre&s• I ~~lieve each time 
1 

I have t~.et:f.f.:f.e.d up ther~ is, flo not look at thb budget increase, and it 
is a big incr~an~ and tt dou, in factt provide re:al increases in Defense 
resourc.t!a when ci:n'rected for inflation,, do not look at: this as a one-year 
fix on the proble.m. It is , not. · · · 

t ' . ; . ' . ·; ( i : l ' : : ' i ; ~ ' ' : 

', Th~ Sovi,et iUnion t a bohavio~ has not been' vomethi.ng of an erratic 1 

.. nature. vh,~e ~het .have popped up· and do"'T'l .. and had large increases one year, 
tl~at then ylolu lla:'ld to s~~ your· act tog!i!ther and respond to, The Soviet 

' Union httli, )tceri ci;nttinuouoly expendini each year £l qons:tderahly higher level 
·. , Of· effort. OU thdr e\COtiomy i that ve hava on O\o\r larger economy, they have 

COltSistently and. !steadily bMn ~rov:f.ding increaQes in real terms to their 
·.defense ostablit>hm"nt •. The United States has been :consistently providing 

decuaC~4!1S in real terms to:our Defense Establiahment. And that can't go 
. '1 • ' 
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14. 

i ; . 
Q. lfuat I am trying to get at is, do you now ·project that you are 

going to have to have a steeper slope in thiB path? You in the past said 
about a two percent real growth with foreign program growth. Are you now 
saying it is going to· be neeessary to have a steepe.r slope? 

A. I'm .not sure, John, that I have ever said anything like that. 
I think Jim talked about that. I think I've tried to avoid a percentage 
increase, but that is beside the point. 

:The answer to your queBtion ls that the Sovi~t Unfon's pattern of 
behavoir during ~he past pe:ciod of years, as we have described in our 
testimony and in the Defense. report~, has been continuing apace. And I 
would anticipate that our budget i11 fiscal year '78. \vill step off 
froro our fiscal year '77 budget and do exactly what l described in the 
testimony; namely, attempt to s~e 'that the United States is put ou and 
then stays on a path that will correct those tn:nds. V.'herc that will come 
our in terms of a ;dollar figure, I am not in a position t:o say at this 
time~ 

~ 
1Q: But will ·we have to increase that slope. Mr. Secretary? r think 

that i.s what John was talking about. 
A: That is a judgment that we will have to mike after we complete 

'I.e work. And 1 ~\'ouldn' t w:mt anything I have naid' here to imply we will 
<.·t wou' t, because that is a jud~:,;ment that the President 'dll have to make 
aftet· the facts are in. And it is also the kind of judgrnent that you 
logically would nake when you have a m.:'1Ximum .amount of informationy , 
which is when you have to,make the decision; namely. in December rather 
than now. 

I . 

Q; I nH~an, based upon .what the Soviet Union has done- in the past 
yeart we have gone more than a year now with the SALT II completely stopped. 
nothing being accomplished. Is there any reason no't-1 to continue that f:i.rst 
slope that you were talking about? Should ~~e have ,to 'j.ncrcase it still 
more? 

A. · It ia not clear to me ·what the implications of the SALT situation· 
wil-l mean \vhen the budget fina.lly goes to bed. l·le know what the basic 
facts are. The basic facts are that the Soviet Union has been proceeding 
\-!ith an exceedingly exten~ive modernization of their. strategic capabilit·les; 
that this has been proceedlng over a period of year·s. It involves their 
submarine capability as welJ!. a_s their l.:md-based ICBHs • as well as their 
interest in civi.l defense. We know :1lso that th~ fnterim agreement expires 
in October of '77, and that it is this Presidentts intention and goal to 
achieve a SALT agreement that: is in our country'n national security interest. 
Whether that will be possible to achieve or not~ lve don 1 t know. But I am 
not in a position to say that I could d.raw any conclusions at the present 
til!le as to how the budget would be affected other than what we have already 
ind:f.cated in our budget supplemental when we said \-'e just plain had to keep 
the Minu~eman line open •. You can'1· allow that l-1inuteman line to close down. 

I. 
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Q. Doea.that mean there'1night b~ a SALT agt·eement by the end 
of the year' or by .January? ~- ' i i ' 

A. It doesn't have any bearing on that question. I said that 
it has been the President'a intention. as he has announced hundreds of 
times, to make an effort, aa he has been, to see if it is possible to 
find an .agreement with the Soviet Union with respect to SALT II priot 

I -
to the time that the interim agreement expires. Whether, he will achieve 
that, Ijdon't: ~O'W'. i . ; ·~ 1 I -1 

Q.l Secret~ry Lu~a ~esterday said he did no~ think the: Sovit>.t Union 
wanted a SALT agreement prior to the November election. Do you agree 

. with that? , 
A. I wouldn t t have ia~y informatio.n I could kdd to ~"hat bas been aa.id 

on that subject. 
i 

Q. \Hll you put tht~ into a transition plan that you have? 
have a change in presidents, will you make a recommendat:l.on. along 
And what are you doint; about, possible transition? , 

u·they 
this line? 

A. 1 don.f t anticiP,ate one. . ~ / i. 

Q. If you did have tb 'make recommendation$: to a different President. 
would you include these:before you go? You will certainly have an opportu-:1ity. 

A~ My recommendations would be available to any and all, arid they 
wouldn't varr regardless of who I was giving th~tn to. 

Q; Mr. /Secretary, are: you back to speed, full time, hea.lthwise? 
do you feel? , 

A. ¥ou.know. like 9S percent. ' ' ~ ; 

Q. Do ~ou intend t:o take· any part in campaigning other than l>rhat 
you--these kinds of things? 

Hpw 

_ ·A. I w;:>rked about 10 or 12 hours yesterday, I guess~ which is about: 
three-quarte~ time. With respect to the campaign, 1 am going to do my best 
to stny out !of it. By that,.,I know I am going 'tro stay out of it because 
the PresidetJt has ordered me· to, with respect to things like political 
meetings. or fund rais,era. or that type of thing, and I have not been 
involved in that at a1L, On ;:he other hand, there is that fuzzier line 
where someone like Ike Pappas comes to me and says, 11Hell, someone in.the 
political arena Said thiS. \~'hat do YOU th:!nk ebOUt that? II And then all 
of a sudden, I find myael£ answering. And sorn~one could say, wellt that. 
is getting involved in the campaign. I don 1 t really think of it that way. 
I think we do have an obligation in the Defense Establishment to the extent 
that press·or congressional questions come up:concerning defense issues, 
whe.ther or not they are part of the campaign dialogue, to state what the 

· ~acts are. And I am perfectly willing to sta~e what the facts are.· I have 
already started. :! ' 

f ' 

Q. Do you personally 'think it was an error for Deputy Secretary 
Clements to appo1nt the treasurer of the Ford Campaign to head a special 
advisory committee to judge a new Pentagon plan to rewei~h profits fro~ 
major arms systems? 

A. tfuat is the status of that at the present time? He is· no longer 
connected with the Ford campaign, :l.s he? 

Mr. Woods: I don't know whether he is or not. It has been announced 

that. he i~ leaving. _· 

, . I 
¢0 
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I Q. 
A. 

·I I 

I ; I 
He ia not connected ~it:h t:he Ford cnmpnign._. 

Re was wheit he s:lt on the panel though'! 
n1at's correct. Is the panel finish~d7 

Q. Yea,on July 19th and 20th. 

16~ 

A. Well. what is my feeling about it. I guess that, you know, you 
kind of have to constantly try to avoid doing things which enable people 
to raise questions about your honesty or about the propriety of what you 
are doing. No one nus even suggested that Mr.. !.foot' who is a long time 
nonpartisant career c:i.vil servant, a fine, talented, dedicated individual " 
who has vorked in thia butlding, no one has ever even hinted that he either. · 
has_done anything wrong, or that he might do something wrong, or that he 
night have thought about doing something wrong, or that he had a confl.ict · 
of interest in any way$ shape)manner and form. Nothing. 

'. : . . 

He obviously is a pers~n; of talent and ab.tlity and who could contribute 
to the panel. Do! th:l.nklt: ia reasonable that lte be on it notw:f.thstanding 
the fact that he happened

1 to· be do:f.ng something that l believe is a citizen's 
duty and responsibility, and that is to participate in the political process 
by serving in a nonpolitical function aa treasurer of the campaign. Do I 
think that that was a terrible thing or a wrong? No, I don't think th.a.t 
H is a terrible thing or 1-rrong. I don't think that Mr. Moot is a bad 
person. I. think he is a decent man. 

You kno· . .;r. in the best. of worldas do you want to not do anyt:h:f.ng that 
anyone can ~ven ask a que.ation about? And you have asked the quest~on. 
So it is clear that it is a question) or you wouldn't have asked it. Yes~-­
I mean, that is always may choice> but I don't think that: you can tie 
yourself in knots and stop living just t:o avoid having people ask questions. 

Q. Do you think 
nonpolitical post? 

the treasurer of the campaign committee is a 

A.. lle ~asn • t a fund raiser. His function 'rl7.its more like a comptroller. 
Mosbacher was the guy who raised the money. the fellow who brought it in. 
But he wasn't, to my kno-.:.~ledge., he is not a politician. You knoot 

, bim, don't you? lie's not a pol'itician, he was mOre of a comptroller. 
- -

I 
' : 

Q. Mr. Secretary, the new PanmunJom agreement was put into effect early 
this morning. What do you think is the lesson of the PanmunJon incident in 
Korea~· killin~ of two Anwric.an officers? . · . , 

A._ Well obviously it was a terrible tragedy, and they were brutal deaths. 
I guess the lesson is that. the North Koreans cotltinue to put pressure on South 
Korea, not only '{erbally. but in this instance, resultit1g in the death of 
some ind:f.viduala and a . great tragedy. The lesa(m I suppose is that • ~hat 
we thought, was correct,. that in fact, our goal in that part of the world 
should be peace, it should be stability 10 and that we should work with our 
allies to contribute to tlwt stability and not allow pressures from various 
quarters or exhaustion to force tS into creating an unstable situat.ton in that 
part of the world. 

I ., ' 
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'I Q: Row long gra you going to continue the alert? 

A1 There 'are some elements of our forces in that part of the 
' ·, world that .. remain on a somewhat different alert status than the; vast majority i 

of ·our forces do generally. ~le will be returning to that baai.s, and have 
been returning to that basis 1.ncremeutally, and ·are now returning to 

•. 

that basis with respect to the forces. Som·e of it has been done~ other 
portions of the return are now in process~ and I would guess thnt within a 
matter of daya we would be back to something approximating a pattern whic.h 
would be similar to tlu~t whi.c.h existed prior to, the incident. · 

Q: Under Whlit conditions would you perbapa·favor the sale of 
_fighter aircraft to China? 1 · · 

·A.: There has-been no request like that. ·we have not contempl4ted 
it. It is not a subject that has been addressed,. and I don't have any 
real v:tew on· it. · .i · · · 

Q: Is it true that the Swedes have been channeling funrls secretly 
to the Air Force intelligence people in order to have an electronics 
eavesdropping system set upt and that the Pentaion is sharing in some of 
the information that the.y might be getting from the Soviets? 

A: What is true is that the S~edisll government has briefed extem\ively 
on the subject. They have said that there wae aome transfer of electronic 
equipment and some payments for it. The paymen~s were bank to bank1 and r. 
know· of no problem with the transactions whatsoever. 

Q: Are we get.titig the 1.nformation -- sharing in the information that is 
com:f.ng fr.om. whatever they a:t"e listening to? 

A: I dontt have anything I can add beyond what he said. He gave &. 

. rathe-r fullsome briefing t.,hich is available in wire service stories, and it 
was co~rcctly stated that there was some equipment that was sold. and it was 
paid for. and I think there have been some implications that there was 
eomethj,ng irregular about the transaction, that some money might have gone to 
the wrong, places or something. ; . , 

Hy understanding 1.s that there is no augg'estion of that whatsoever. 
l 

Q: The suggestiorl was that Genet.•al Triantafellu was given $250,000 .in 
payments. That was the original story. Is that correct? 

A: That is correct that that ,.,as the ori,ginal story. And what I am 
saying is that I know yf no one who is t;Uggesting that that is accurate. 
That is to say, that I1know of no one who is alleging or suggesting that 
there was any improper action by individuals with respect to those funds. 

Q: You said the transactions we:re back to bank"/ 
A: 'rhat iB my understanding. 

I 

Q; Are you going to:recotunlend to the President that he veto the 
military construction billas presently proposed? 

A: I haven't had a chance to study the specific language and actually 
try to calculate how big a btirde.n it is. It is clear that it ia an annoyance. 

. :I 
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·a clear that it dou'blea the number of days. lt is clear that it continues 
Flttcm of Congrcbs diddling arot.md in these ar.ean in a way that makes 
~afficult for ua to spe-nd rthe taxpayers' ~ollars efficiently and sensibly. 

' i : i ' ' 
. ! ! ' ! ~ 
'Now. whether at this' late date in the year it calls for a second veto, 

'don•t know. I personally don't bel"leve it will get to the President in 
1at form. It is only in the Senate version at the present time. We l1ave 
H~.n through the ·thing ooce. 1All the arguments have been made. There 
·' e Constitutlonal questions, there are waste of taxpayers' money questions. 
:i' hope :ta that the House of Repreaentative.st pooit1on will prevail. 
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NEWS CONFERENCE 

BY 
SECRETARY OF DEFENSE DONALD RUMSFELD 

AT THE PENTAGON 
MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 27, · 1976 

For a number of weeks there have been questions by members .of the press 
asking us to provide an update on Soviet ballistic missile programs and 
particularly MIRV programs with respect to events that have taken place and 
I guess since the Defense Repol';'t for all practical purposes. I indicated that · 
I'd try to do that. I am available to do that today if that is your desire. 
Before I do, I might make a couple of other comments. 

First with respect to the shipbuilding program, as you know the Bennett 
Seapower Subcommittee unanimously reported out .a major portion of what the· 
President requested, a $1.1 billion program involving four additional frigates, 
strike cruiser and the aegis destroyer. Needless. to say, President Ford and I · 
and the United States Navy are hopeful that when that issue comes up tomorrow ~­
and it's scheduled for consideration of the full House Armed Services Committee 
tomorrow, I am told - that the Committee will support that because we are 
convinced that the United States Navy does need modernization and that this is 
certainly a sensible approach towards modernizing our Navy this year. And it's 
needed. 

The second is the subject of the main battle tank. As you know, there's 
been testimony over the last month on the subject. I was . down in Norfolk the 
day I was asked to testify, volunteered to testify later in the week, but the 
hearings were closed and there is a possibility at least there will be some 
consideration of that during this final week of the Congress. I'd like to 
just make several points about it. We've been working with the commit tee; 
there have been a great many witnesses up there. Our goal obviously is to have 
a main battle tank promptly, and certainly ·as the bids come in, anything that 
will affect in a s"ignificant way cost, schedule, capability of ·the tank certainly 
would become a very important part of the decision-making process. 

There has been a lot of talk about a possible six-month delay • . A year's delay, 
possibily up to two years' delay. And lest there be any doubt, that clearly is not 
our intention in the Defense Department. Our goal is to get moving with the 
program and to have a good tank. 

The report of the two-man panel of course raised a number of questions. 
The report indicates, I believe, some misunderstandings as to some of the actions 
taken, the objective of the actions, the potential effect of the actions. In 
short, what we've done is this. We've deferred making source selection by up 
to 120 days. We intend to make the source selection between Chrysler and General 
Motors and to decide upon the configuration of the XM-1 tank not later than 
17 November. 
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Design decisions could affect costs, schedule and capability. That could 
happen anyway, but in any event, we won't know to what extent~ if at all, until 
the information is in and we've had a chance to evaluate it between now and 
November 17. The approach was designed to obtain proposals from the contractors 
while in a competitive environment, focusing on the same basic tank and 
developing configuration options which would not otherwise have been available. 
Or, if they were to be available, they would have had to have been made 
available in a non-competitive environment. So the whole purpose of our 
decision of withholding the source selection was to get the additional 
configuration options in a competitive environment. As you know, the background was 
that on July 20, the Secretary of the Army presented to Secretary Clements and the 
members of the DSARC the Army's recommendations that the contractor be selected 
then, and as desired,request bids for quotations on a sole source~ non-competitive 
basis for various possible configurations of the tank. In contrast, the 
recommendation made by Secretary Clements and the members of the DSARC must have 
the Army continue both contractors for a short period of time, solicit quotations 
in a competitive environment for the configuration alternatives of interest, 
quotations which I understand Mr. Clements had anticipated would be available on 
July 20.but which were not. · 

In considering the differing views, I concurred with the unanimous recom­
mendations of Mr. Clements and the members of the DSARC. The two-man panel heard 
testimony on the potential for increases in the costs of the tank program. Unfor­
tunately the line of questioning tended to drive towards a single large cost 
figure rather than towards an analysis of how costs might change with the various 
options; and the fact of.the·matter is. I've indicated earlier is, that we really 
can't know, if at all, cost of the XM program might change until that information 
is ·available. \ · · ' 

The only thing I'd say is that we believe that we've taken the step of 
withholding source selection in the XM program for sound reasons to get compe­
titive rather than sole source bids. Our actions we feel are prudent and consistent 
and I certainly for one are proud of the progress that·we're making on the new 
tank and feel that any attempt to redirect this effort could be detrimental to 
our goal of having a main battle tank program soon. That is all I have to say 
on the tank. 

I guess ; Jim (James P. Wade, Director of Department of Defense SALT Task · 
Force), do you want to put up that first one there and we can talk about the strategic 

systems. · 
Jim (James Wade) and I have prepared a statement here which talks about the 

ballistic missile program and MIRV programs. We tried to put down some of the 
things that are taking place and include those which have occurred since the 
Defense Report. 

The first point I make there is that the Soviet Union today is clearly 
militarily stronger and busier than in any other period of its history. They 
devote more resources to defense than any other nation in the world. 
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The Soviets continue to press ahead with aggressive development programs~ 
for both land-based ballistic missiles (ICBMs and IRBMs) and SLBM systems. The 
scope of these programs is unprecedented, either in the Soviet Union or in the 
U.S. While recent developments were not unexpected, they nevertheless 
reinforce one's concern about the purposes behind their energetic activities. 

We continue to expect that the Soviets will eventually deploy close to 
the 1320 MIRVed missiles permitted under the Vladivostok understanding, assuming 
a SALT II agreement is reached. 

We remain uncertain, however, as to the eventual mix the Soviets will 
select between MIRVed ICBMs and MIRVed SLBMs. 

To the best of our knowledge no MIRVed SLBMs have been deployed to date, but 
they are expected to begin deployment over the next few years. Soviet efforts 
continue to be concentrated on the MIRVing of their ICBM force. 

The first chart here it simply shows on the left the U.S. land-based ICBMs 
and on ·the right the Soviet Union's land-based ICBMs, indicating in the second 
row, I believe, maximum number of warheads (Let me see what that says, I can't 
see it from here.) The bottom line shows the number of potential MIRVed war­
heads. The next to the bottom line shows the model number of that particular 
missile. 

Since I last commented here on this subject, the Soviets have continued to 
·deploy three new ICBMs -- the SS-17, SS-18, and SS-19 --all of which have been 

tested with .MIRVs. 

Testing is thought to be near completion on a fourth ICBM, the smaller 
SS-X-16, and a companion missile to the 16, the SS-X-20, which is not an ICBM, 
which I'll get to in a moment. 

The SS-X-20 is a two-stage derivative the SS-X-16 which is believed to 
have been designed to replace ~ging Imtermediate Range Ballistic Missile (IRBM) 
systems (SS-4 and -5). We have no firm evidence, as I indicated the other day 
that the SS-X-20 has actually been deployed, nor do we have any firm evidence 
that the 16 has. 

All five of these systems, 16, 17, 18, 19, 20, have a post-boost vehicle 
which usually implies a MIRV capability, and all except the SS-X-16 have been 
tested with a MIRV payload. 

The SS-17 is one of two new missiles designed to replace the older SS-11. It 
utilizes an advanced, two-stage, liquid-propellant booster and carries a four­
reentry vehicle (RV) MIRV payload. The missile first entered the Soviet inventory 
in mid-1975 and, to date, approximately thirty missiles are operationally 
deployed in silos. 

The SS-19 was also designed to replace the SS-11 and, like the SS-17: It is 
a two-stage liquid-propellant missile, and carries a six-RV MIRV payload. The 
SS-19 first entered the Soviet inventory in late 1974, and, at the present time, at 
least 100 of these missiles are believed to have been operationally d~ployed. 
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During the last year both the SS-17 and SS-19 have also been tested with · 
single RVs. 

J The SS-18 is a two-stage, liquid propellant missile which is designed to 
replace the SS-9 heavy ICBM. It has been tested with both single RV and MIRVed pay­
loads since the beginning of the program. Approximately forty SS-18s have been 
deployed since it first became operational in late 1974. It is believed that 
these missiles are of the single RV version, which completed flight testing first, 
and that deployment of the MIRVed version, with eight RVs, will begin in the near 
future. Over three hundred SS-18s are expected to be deployed when this program is 
completed~ 

The SS-X-16 is a three-stage, solid propellant missile which is believed to 
have been designed as a replacement for the older SS-13 and possibly for use in 
a new land-mobile ICBM system. To date, it has been tested only with single 
RV payloads, but the missile does incorporate a post-boost vehicle, suggesting 

. a possible MIRV role in the future. Although no evidence exists at this date 
that any SS-X-16 missiles have been operationally deployed, they could be 
deployed at any time, either in silos or on mobile launchers. 

The SS-X-20 uses the first two stages of the SS-X-16, has a post-boost 
vehicle, and has been tested with three MIRVs. This missile is believed to have 
been designed as a replacement for the SS-4 and SS-5 IRBM systems. To date, it 
has been observed to have been tested only to IRBM ranges. Although no evidence 
exists at this date that any SS-X-20 missiles have been operationally deployed, 
initial deployment on mobile launchers is expected at any time. 

As far as the SLBM programs, again the bottom line shows the number of 
warheads,the next to bottom line the MOD number. 

In addition to the land-based ballistic missile programs, two new SLBMs 
are currently under development as probable follow-on's to the SS-N-6 and SS-N-8 
missiles presently deployed. Both are in the flight test stage~£ a development 
program which is expected to last at least another year. 

The missile we have designated the SS-NX-17 is the first Soviet solid 
propellant SLBM. Although it ~tilizes a post-boost vehicle, it has so far been 
observed with only a single reentry vehicle. The presence of the post-boost 
vehicle, however, could allow it to carry a MIRV package. This missile is 
believed to be a follow-on replacement for the SS-N-6 in a modified YANKEE­
class nuclear-powered submarine. 

The SS-NX-18 is being developed as a follow-on to the 4200 nm range 
SS-N-8 SLBM and will probably be deployed on a variant of the DELTA-class 
ballistic missile submarine. The SS-NX-18 is a liquid propellant missile and 
is the first Soviet SLBM to be MIRVed. We believe that this missile may be 
capable of carrying as many as three reentry vehicles. 

Since the SS-NX-17 and SS-NX-18 are both in the early phases of the flight test 
program, we do not expect either system to be deployed operationally for several 
years. 
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5. 

In short, over the past fifteen years, the Soviets have concentrated primarily 
on quantitative improvements to their strategic missile forces. They now have 
more than 1500 ICBMs and more than 800 SLBMs operationally deployed. 

Having surpassed the U.S. in both of those two categories -- obviously 
not with respect to our strategic bomber capability -- the Soviets turned their 
efforts to qualitative improvements. 

The new . ICBMs, currently being deployed, have substantially greater throw­
weight and are significantly more accurate than their predecessors.· 

Current trends indicate that, by the early 1980's, all of most of the 
Soviet's existing ICBMs could be replaced with the new generation of missiles. 

The SLBMs,. which are still in the test phase, are believed to have sub­
stantially improved accuracy, better range capability, and better payload 
flexibility than existing Soviet SLCMs. It is estimated that all or most of 

·the current generation SLBMs could be replaced by the late 1980's. 

In short, the Soviets appear to be on a steady building program which 
could carry them toward ~ capability in excess of that needed merely to deter 
nuclear war. 
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Is there one more chart, oh, you've got it up. That's kind of a sum­
mary description. (I don't know that those were passed out, were they? 
A: Yes.) I guess the only thing that was not passed out is this little 
gouge that I made myself which is that the 18 is intended to replace the 
9; the 17 and 18 to replace 11 in large part; the 16 to replace the 13, 
and the 20 to replace or augment the 4s and the Ss. 

Q: Do you know why they're using so many SS-18s with a single warhead? 
A: Well, I think that what the Soviet Union will have to do is what 

others would have to do as to make judgments when they look at their total 
capability as it evolves over a period of time, to make judgments as to 
whether its to their· advantage with respect to their targeting and their 
total capabilities to have a system MIRVed or with a single RV. It seems 
to me that that's kind of out in the future as to how that will evolve. 

Q: Surely the Soviet Union was aware what they were doing when they 
put a single RV on SS-18s, about 25 to 30 megatons. What would be the 
purpose of 40 of those missiles? 

A: Let me see if this is a response to it. It seems to me that a 
decision to do that is a decision to develop a capability that will thereby 
evolve from that and that clearly is a substantial capability to deal with 
certain types of targets. 

Q: What kind of targets would those be? 
A: If you use a single RV? 

Q: Yes. 
A: They'd be targets that you want them to destroy and you needed a 

good capability to do it. 

Q: (Inaudible) 
A: To a lesser extent. 

Q: How do we know, do we have a technique of knowing without getting 
inside a missile that it's single as opposed to a MIRV? 

A: I guess the correct answer is through national technical means. 
The United States can make judgments as to whether a system has been tested 
in a MIRVed as well as a single RV mode. 

Q: We're talking about deployment, though, not just testing. Is this 
a foolproof technique that would hold up under SALT? Have we confirmed 
whether its our MIRV or a single RV? 

A: I don't want to get into the specifics of our national technical 
means, but the answer is yes, we do have the ability to make those kinds 
of judgments as to -- pardon me? 

VOICE: May I answer that? One point is that the flight test program 
with the SS 18 with the single RV commenced much earlier than the program 
with multiple RV's, and therefore we have seen that flight test develop­
ment program basically be completed, so we expect initial deployment to be 
with single RV's. 
Now, if we say multiple RV's deployment is commencing now, we still in the 
out years have a difficulty in being able to distinguish one versus the 
other as far as international means are concerned. And this gives us a 
concern as far as SALT is concerned. 
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Q: ·We're talking about 40 missiles~ how do we know with any certainty 
that they're just single RV's? 

VOICE: Well, as I said before, the developmental program with the 
single RV's is basically completed, so we expect, as we said, that this 
initial deployment of the single RV's. Follow on MIRV deployment is now 
commencing now. 

Q: I'm still talking about these 40 missiles. They've also tested them 
with MIRVed warheads. 

VOICE: That's right. 

Q: ~ell is that completed, not completed? 
MR. RUMSFELD: I think what Jim is saying is if you take the time 

sequence, that the single RV testing preceded by a substantial period of 
time the MIRV testing, and that that is the reason why the conclusion on 
our part is that the forty that are deployed, are single. 

Q: Mr. Secretary, what does this mean in the way of a threat to the 
United States? 

A: Well, from a factual standpoint it means what it says, that these 
various systems, in the numbers set forth, and the throw weights that 
are involved, and the numbers of RV's that are involved, and the accuracies 
that are involved, constitute the Soviet Union's strategic nuclear capabil­
ity. And that what that means is not a function only of what they have, 
but it is a function also of what we do and what our behavior is in the 
United States. The goal, obviously, is to see that the strategic nuclear 
deterrent is healthy, that the deterrent is in effect, functioning, and 
so as you see this kind of development program sequentially from really 
quantitative focus and attention over a period of years, to qualitative 
attention and focus more recently, it means that the United States has to 
see that our behavior pattern is such that that strategic nuclear deterrent 
stays in balance. 
And the programs that we have put forward to the Congress -- as I recall 
the date was in 1974 -- with repsect to prospective modernization of our 
SLBM force, more recently with prospective modernization of our manned 
bomber force, the proposals for a follow on to the B-52 and prospectively 
with respect to some modernization of our land-based ICBM force, that it is 
important for the United States to continuously assess and evaluate that 
balance, see that the deterrent that we have is healthy and effective. 

Q: Mr. Secretary, does it matter that the SS-16 has not been tested 
with more than a single RV since the SSX20 has? Isn't testing for the SSX20 
essentially testing for the SS-16? 

A: It is a fact. It does not necessarily have a great deal of meaning. 
You're right. In other words the fact that the 16 has a post boost vehicle, 
the fact that the 20 has been tested in the MIRV manner, does suggest that 
the 16 could be, but it hasn't been. 

Q: What I'm trying to lead up to is the possibility that the SSX20 
becomes a convertible item that could give you an ICBM capability. I don't 
know how long it takes to turn one of these things around, but that it's 
a potential vehicle for cheating or for giving you an instant capability, if 
you ever get in trouble. 

A: Well, obviously one has to look at systems apart from those systems 
that are specifically described as intercontinental in capability. One has 
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to look at other systems and ask that question, is it possible for there to 
be a utilization in a variety of different ways that would in fact place 
them in a category of ICBM capability. 
At the present time the SSX20 has not been tested to intercontinental ranges. 
We do categorize it, as I said, as an IRBM. But that's true with a number 
of things, what you're asking, and I don't know that I could answer it con­
clusively except to say obviously we're attentive to that. 

Q: The 20 is not a potential instant 16 in any kind of crisis situation, 
or overnight 16? 

A: 'I guess I'm comfortable with my answer. That's something that we 
have to be attentive to and assure ourselves on. As we proceed with the 
SALT negotiations that deals with the subjects of intercontinental systems, 
one does have to look at those systems that are off the edge of that defini­
tion, as we're doing with respect to several systems that have been widely 
debated in the press. Obviously the 20 is another that needs to be addressed. 

Q: Mr. Secretary, is there anything different in what you went through 
today than what you went through in your posture statement in January, and 
if so where is the difference and what should we do about it? 

A: Well, I apologize. I did not go back .to my posture.statement and 
analyze the specific events that have occurred since, and I was afraid you'd 
ask the question. Let me put it this way. What I've presented today is not 
in any way inconsistent with the posture statement. I 
It is rather a projection of events that the posture statement either said 
had occurred or would occur, but in no case is anything I've presented today 
contrary to any of the prognostications that were in the posture statement. 
The major differences in terms of events that have occurred, as I recall, 
are in the SLBM area, since the January day. Do you want to cite any 
specifics that were not anticipated or were not speculated about in the 
posture statement? 

Q: The point is, sir, is that you have voiced concern about the latent 
projection in the future of these programs, and what we're saying is con­
sistent with what you said in the posture statement. 

Q: What are the surprises? 

Q: Are there any surprises since January? 

VOICE: Not any major surprises. We see a slightly higher deployment rate 
of these new missile systems than perhaps we expected since January. 
That pertains to concern -- I believe the Secretary said, we questioned 
the progammatic direction of what the Soviets are up to. 

Q: Our original query, and it's been repeated here several times was, 
to get the June 30th rundown of the ICBM's and other missiles, the SLBMs, 
compared with your forecast in January of where we will be in June, or where 
the Russians would be in June. We don't have that~ Essentially we can 
compare it either in warheads or in individual missiles. 

MR. RUMSFELD: Oh, sure you do. You've got the posture statement and 
we have this written document plus the copies of these --

Q: As of the 30th of •••• 
'.· 
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A: · I don;t think anything's changed in the last month, but it's 
basically as of a month ago or right about now. 

Q: Mr. Secretary, are the rates higher than you expected1 At this 
rate it would take them 20 years to reach the level we now have. You're 
deploying MIRV missiles at the rate of 60 a year. 

Q: That's the point I want to get to. 

Q: They're two years now, into their deployment and they've only deployed 
130 MIRVed missiles. It'd take them 20 years to reach more than 1000. 
We're talking about the early eighties before they get even. 

VOICE: Well, the statement said here (inaudible) the total missile 
force in the Soviet Union will be turned over. 

Q: But you've got 100 SS-19's deployed, it would take you 10 to 11 
years to replace all the SS-].l's. You've only got 40 SS-18's, apprently 
they are to replace, you said, about three or 400 of those. It would take 
you about 10 years. Fifteen months ago the former Defense Secretary 
Schlesinger said that the Soviets were expected to deploy about 200 to 220 
ICBM's a year. And 15 months ago he had almost 100 missiles deployed. I 
don't see that we've deployed over 100 for instance in the last year. 

VOICE: I think the major point here is their MIRV development programs 
have now been completed and we see the start up of the MIRV deployments. 
As the statement indicated, we expect by late 1979-1980 time period, that 
this total new generation missile force can be turned over, as far as the 
ICBMs are concerned. We see now the SLBM force as far as the follow on to 
the Yankae Six and the Delta Eight. We expect that that program can be 
turned around by the mid-1980s. We are now seeing the turn on the Soviet 
anq MIRV deployments. 

A: Well, as you go through a development program and complete your 
testing and start your deployments, you're not going to. deploy all of them 
instantaneously but you obviously are going to be deploying once that work's 
done at a more rapid rate, obviously than you did did previously. 

Q: 130 missiles in two years is not a crash program by any means. When 
had you expected it, was it higher than you had expected? 

A: As I say I didn't say it was higher than I'd expected. Jim did. 

VOICE: I thought it was slightly higher than that expected six months 
ago, but just slightly higher. Again, I think the key point is we're saying 
1979, 1980 that we see the Soviet full deployment in these new missiles be 
in the field. Again, that's three years from now, that's not 10 years. 

A: The point I was making in my statement is that the Defense Posture ,,,. 
Statement indicated that there had been effort quantitatively over a period\~' ~5', 
of time, and that the focus the Soviets was on qualitative improvement; ,~;/: 
that they did have a variety, as you saw from the first chart, of new 
missiles coming along, the 16, 17, 18 and 19, and that as those testing programs 
were completed they would be modernizing their forces. The fact is they now are 

modernizing their forces, and it strikes me it would not be a prudent estimate 
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to do as one questioner did and multiply the number deployed in the initial 
time frame by years and speculate that the modernization would not be com­
pleted for a decade. As Jim suggests, we anticpate that the modernization. 

Q: When do you expect that they will equal us in MIRV missiles? 

A: Well, if Jim is correct, as I suspect he is, when he indicates that 
in the early eighties the bulk of this modernization program would be com­
pleted, ~hat they would be very likely moving up towards the 1320 in that time 
frame. I wouldn't want to pick a specific year, but that's assuming the 1320 
that was discussed at Vladivostok gets pounded down into an agreement. 

Q: Mr. Secretary, you indicate the first 40 SS-18s are single warheads. 
Does that mean you're ready to change the counting rules under SALT II. 
count some 18s or 19s as single warheads and some as MIRV's? 

A: No, definitely we have no intention of changing that carrying rule has 
been discussed. 

Q: So you would keep the. 

A: Count it as a MIRV. 

Q: You would count 40 that you believe to be single warheads as MIRVS, 
if SALT II. 

A: At the point where you've fit within that rule and your testing 
program, yes. 

Q: Mr. Secretary, I'd like to ask you to complete a thought that has 
left us dangling at the end of your formal statement. You say it appears 
the Soviets are building toward a capability in excess of that needed 
merely to deter nuclear war. What sort of capability do you think the 
Soviets are building woard? 

A: Well, it seems to me that a reasonable person can look at the effort 
that the Soviet Union has applied and the product of that effort and conclude 
that they're clearly striving to not be on the losing side in the event those 
weapons are used. That, I think, is clear from the numbers and the types and 
the improvements, as well as their civil defense activities. That is to say, 
put a slightly different way that they appear, I think, to people who observe 
this, to be interesting themselves in seeing that -- obviously that they have 
have the deterrent that they need, but also that in the event there is an 
exchange that they're not on the losing side. 

Q: Are you saying they're working for a war-winning capability? 

A: Well, you know, you start getting into those code words and all of that. 
I guess people have to make their own judgments on that. I think I can state, 
assert what I've asserted here very comfortably, that the pattern of, as I've 
described, suggests that they're undertaking programs that reflect a concern 
on their part as to which side would prevail at the end of a conflict, using 

these weapons. 
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Q: Is that different from the U.S. policy in missile.forces? 
A: I think that our emphasis, if one looks at our numbers and our 

capabilities and our relative inattention to things like civil defense, it could be 
more precisely characterized as being determined to see that we have a strong. 
healthy, strategic nuclear deterrent. 

Q: Anything that you see --
A: Just a minute. Jim, do you want to amplify on that at al~? It's 

obviously a question that's an important question and people can have somewhat 
different ways of saying it. As a person I've always tended to walk away from 
hot bottom phrases and words and try to describe things in, oh, words that can 
be heard and read to mean what I want them to mean, rather than adding a whole 
lot of meanings that people have in their heads from previous debates and 
discussions on the subject. 

Voice: I'd make one comment here. The capacity of the U.S. programs 
have been aimed at preventing a war from occurring; namely, the maintenance 
of peace, and thus our purpose has been on preventing a war from occurring, and 
as far as that part of the deterrent equation, talks about war fighting or 
war fighting capabilities, we have tended to try to minimize them. We foxus 
our attention on preventing a war from going on. The Soviets in the past, par­
ticularly with the capabilities of these new systems, they're emphasizing to a great 
extent the capability of their missile forces to attack more military targets than 
perhaps we believe necessary as far as mutual deterrence is concerned. 

Our attention on civil defense is certainly consistent to that, and therefore 
it just brings to our mind the question that generally the Soviets consistent 
with out objective as far as preventing war is concerned, or do they have something 
else in mind with these resources. That question is still in mind. 

Q: How do you feel about that, Mr. Rumsfeld? Do you have any fears? One 
of the concerns that you're mentioning, that in the first sentence you say they 
nevertheless reinforce one's concern about the purposes behind their energetic 
activities. Could there be an offense purpose behind this? 

A: Well, as you know, ever since I've been in this post I've tried to avoid 
pretending that I could climb in each of the Soviet individuals who could 
conceivably contribute to decisions in this area and pretend that I could determine 
intent, let alone intent over a sustained period of time. 

What I have to do is look at capabilities. I've tried to describe them, 
here in an unclassified version, to the extent that's possible, and my concern, 
and my interest, obviously, is seeing that the United States of America, in the 
face of these quantitative and qualitative improvements, makes no mistake about 
what we have to do as a country to see that that deterrent is healthy and strong. 
It's the interaction of what they're doing and what we're doing that will determine 
what that strategic nuclear deterrent will in fact be one, two, three, four, five 
years from now in the period that Dr. Wade is discussing in the early 1980s. 
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And it strikes me that our program that is before the Congress is a sensible 
program and a sound program, and to the extent that there is a proper response 
to the proposals that the President of the United States has put forward, obviously, 
any concern I might have as a future problem is lessened. 

Q: Mr. Secretary, once this entire Soviet deployment pattern is complete, 
will these missiles be as good as the existing missiles not employed by the 
United States, and if not, what do you intend to do to balance the trends? 

A: r could answer that, but it wouldn't give a sufficiently balanced 
response to your question because I think when one talks about the strategic 
nuclear balance or deterrent they have to look at more than just the missiles. 
Because our capability includes a very healthy strategic bomber force. Therefore, 
in evaluating the balance, or the deterrent, we can't simply look at SLBMs, 
theirs against ours, or ICBM ours against theirs, we have to add in our strategic 
bomber capability and some other factors, as you of course well know, so that 
we know what that balance will be. 

My concern is to see that the strategic nuclear triad progresses and is 
modernized at a rate that in fact at the time they have completed modernization 
of their strategic nuclear capability, that that deterrent is healthy and strong. 

So the answer to your question is obviously at that point where they've 
completed their modernization, assuming we did nothing, and if you exclude our 
bomber capability, they would, as I indicated, be ahead in ICBMs and SLBMs. But 
that is not enough of an answer. 

Q: Can I follow·that? Is a single, say MIRV SX-17 as good as a single 
Minuteman III in terms of --

A: I see what you're asking. 

Q: -- in terms of accuracy and capabilities, that kind of thing? 
A: In the first place, I don't believe it's an accurate way to achieve a 

net assessment to take one missile against one missile, because that isn't the 
way the potential exchanges is evaluated. But you can look at different 
missiles and in the earlier chart and you can see how many RV's they have, 
and we know what their progress is with respect to accuracy relative to ours, 
and you can come up with answers, missile for missile, but I don't know once 
you have that answer on a specific missile against another specific missile 
that you have very much. 

Q: Well, are you confident, for example, that the accuracy figures that you 
are able to determine can give the Soviets confidence that they can in fact attempt 
to attack military targets? 

A: If I were to try to set forth how I would describe their accuracies, 
I would say, (a) they're behind where we are in accuracy; (b) they obviously 
are attentive to the importance of accuracy, and the intelligence community, 
needless to say, interests itself in their progress with respect to accuracy 
improvement, and that the estimate is that in the late seventies, early eighties, 
they will be achieving improvements in their accuracies something like the 
improvements we've been achieving in our accuracies some years past. 
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When the intelligence community does this, they obviously come up with 
high estimates, low estimates and bust estimates. So it's a range. 

The kinds of improvements that we've experienced which have worked to our 
advantage we anticipate from the information we have, they will be experiencing 
something approximating those in the early 1980s. 

Q: They'll be catching up with us in the early 1980s, is that -­
A: I wouldn't want to --

Q: while we move further ahead. 
A: Well, Jim, expand on this if you want to, but the kinds of improvements 

that we've had are likely to be -- something approximating that we're likely to 
see the Sovl.ets have. ··we're not likely to achieve the kind of major improvements 
we had previously during the coming period, if that's what you're asking. Nor 
are they likely to achieve them. 

Q: They're going to (inaudible) 
A: Oh, now wait a minute. Oh my. Oh, my. ., 

J 

Q: Mr. Secretary, as Secretary of Defense -- all right. 
A: I'm sorry, but let me really underline and emphasize this because what 

we're dealing with here is art important subject and communications is not always 
perfect between human beings. When one looks at this I caution everybody about 
taking a single statistic or a single trend or a single system. We have to look 
at accuracy, we have to look at throw-weight, we have to look at the numbers of 
weapons, we have to look at various other things that gogether comprise a total 
strategic nuclear capability. And to extract one, like accuracy, or RVs or 
throw weight or something else, and suggest that the balance turns on that, isn't 
accurate. We have to be concerned about significant assymetries with respect 
to any of them, obviously. But it's the total capability that one assesses. 

I 

Q: Mr. Secretary, as Secretary of 
of the Soviet effort, namely as you put 
sense, or is it just a waste of money? 
like embark on a big, new civil defense 
money are we comfortable where we stand 
about? 

Defense, does this tenor or general profile 
it, not to be on the losing side, make 

A! 

If it makes sense, should we do likewise, 
program? Or, if it's just a waste of 
and therefore there's nothing to worry 

You mean does it make sense from our standpoint? 

Q: Yes, in other words, does it make sense to you for the Soviets to 
pursue getting on the winning side of the nuclear exchange and therefore if to 
you it does make sense we have to do even more than we are doing, namely perhaps 
beef up our nuclear force or our ICBM protection, or is it just a losing game 
we're on and as far as you're concerned, we're doing fine and they're wasting their 
money? 

A: Well, it's clearly not the latter and let me see if I can refine a little bit 
of what you suggested with respect to the former. What the Soviets are doing is 
a fact, it's a reality. That is to say, they've gone from where they were to 
where they are now and prospectively we anticipate where they're going as we've 
suggested. We have to deal with that, that is to say, theyre going to have 
"X" numbers of SLBMs, ICBMs, and other strategic nuclear systems. 
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We have to look at that, we have to then go through the process of 
making an assessment as to what that interaction with our capabilities 
would be. To the extent that assymetries look like they're occurring in a 
significant way we have to see that we're developing our force so that that 
strategic nuclear balance is healthy. · 

And that means that what we do between now and then is important. Now, 
you're asking could we just ignore what they're doing, and .the answer is 
clearly no, we can't ignore what they're doing. 

Q: 'What I'm asking, I think, by telescope of this, should we try 
and build a force to win a nuclear war? 

A: It seems. to me what we should try to do is to see that the strategic 
nuclear deterrent stays healthy, and that we achieve the kinds of force 
modernizations which will be necessary in the period between now and mid­
eighties, so that in fact there is an acceptable strategic nuclear balance. 
That is why the proposals are before the Congress with respect to the SLBM 
force, and the bomber force; it's why we have been doing various research 
and development with respect to the ICBM force. 

Q: Secretary Reed said we should begin full scale engineering develop-
ment of a new land base missile in 1978. In light of your remarks today, · 
do you support that, will you recommend that to the President? 

A: As I've testified repeatedly, we have to see that each of the 
elements of our strategic nuclear triad is modernized as we proceed through 
time, and it's clear that as the Soviet accuracies improve it does affect 
the survivability of our land based ICBM forces. And that means that we 
have to, obviously in the period ahead, without getting into what month 
or what year recommendations will be made, or who will make them to whom, 
we have to see that that force is modernized. And that's why we've been 
doing research and development in that connection. 

Q: Have you seen anything since your Posture Statement in January 
in the pace of Soviet development, of the nature of Soviet development, 
which would impel you to accelerate your various programs which have been 
before the Congress for some time, as well as the situation in SALT? 

A: If I had to characterize it I would say that the Soviet Union's 
progress with respect to their strategic nuclear capability has been 
reasonably consistent with what we forecast in January. 

Number two, that obviously as we go through the fiscal '78 budget 
process which we're now doing, we have additional information that was not 
available when we went through the fiscal '77 budget process. And therefore 
our proposals for fiscal '78 will reflect what is. There has not been 
anything that has been sufficiently different from that which was anticipated 
in the strategic nuclear area that it called for us to go into the Congress 
with a supplemental mid-year, with the single exception in the strategic 
nuclear area of the decision with respect to keeping open the Minuteman III 
line. And that was not so much related to the rate of progress of the Soviet 
strategic nuclear modernization program, but rather it was connected with 
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the fact that the SALT II agreement had not been completed and the 
Minuteman III line was our only land based ICBM line, and we did not want 
to allow that capability to erode during a period when SALT was still 
being negotiated. 

In answer to the second part of your question, no, there's been nothing 
that has taken place with respect to SALT that has been of a overriding 
nature that has led us to go in with a supplemental either, other than the 
Minuteman III line which I've described. Yes. 

Q: /You referred earlier to the gray areas in SALT talks, you alluded 
.to backfire and cruise missiles, you then said that the SS 20 is a problem 
which needs to be addressed. Does that mean that you figure that the SS 20 
now needs to be added as consideration of the SALT II talks? 

A: No, no, our intelligence community figures on that, as I just 
indicated, still indicated that that's not been tested in ICBM mode. It has 
been tested in IRBM mode. 

So it's not something that, given what we know of it at the present 
time, would fit formally in a SALT negotiation. 

If in SALT you're dealing with systems that are agreed to be of an ICBM 
capability, intercontinental capability, we know that just outside that 
there are systems that are not of an intercontinental capability. In negotiat­
ing those things you negotiate in SALT, one does it without blinders on, that 
is to say one negotiates those things that have an intercontinental capability 
with an awareness of those things that do not have an intercontinental 
capability but are just short of that. 

That doesn't mean they become part of the negotiation, but they are 
obviously are part of your peripheral vision as you proceed. And in some 
cases those systems can be sufficiently close in capability that you have 
to be fairly sensitive to them in your peripheral vision. 

Because looking at a mix of capabilities, they in fact, such as the SS 20, 
it in fact exists, and as it's deployed provides certain capabilities. 

Q: Well, what's the Pentagon's official position on the backfire bomber, 
is it strategic or is it - in a grey area? 

A: We've not changed our intelligence understanding on that, and our 
judgment is what it has been. At the present time --
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Q: (Inaudible) 3,000 miles and just this past week one of your leaders 
here in the building said 5,000 miles. 

A: We have not changed o ur agreed intelligence position that the 
backfire bombe~ operated in certain modes does in fact have an intercon­
tinental capability. That's exactly what it's been. That's what I've testi­
fied to, that's what everyone's testified to. The Soviets don't agree with 
that, you understand, okay. 

Q: Do you share Dr. Ikle's point of view that in future SALT consider­
ations one should allow for what you call the peripheral vision of these 
systems, in other words, the total strategic capability of both countries, 
equal security as a standard be brought into play, or are you satisfied with 
the present, limited areas that are being pursued? Ikle in his report and 
in a recent speech indicated that from an accurate point of view, it would 
be desireable to broaden the scope of SALT to include regional missiles. 

A: I guess I haven't read everything Fred said on it, so let me describe 
what I think, rather than answering whether I agree with some sentence in a 
speech he made. My view is that those who suggest that you can't do anything 
until you can .do everything are counseling, of course, which means that 
nothing will get done. Conversely, to suggest that you can proceed doing 
some things and ignore those things that are just off to the side is ob­
viously foolhardy. And I don't know that there's any disagreement between 
Fred or me or anyone else in the administration. The fact of the matter is 
that one has to recognize that there are certain systems that both of us can 
agree are intercontinental. There may be some that we don't agree, one thinks 
is and the other doesn't, or vice versa. And there may be some systems that 
both of us agree are not of an intercontinental range, but that cannot be 
ignored, at least in the minds of the respective parties as they're nego­
tiating their intercontinental systems. Now, I guess rephrasing your question, 
do I think the Grey area are important and ought not to be ignored certainly, 
but I think everyone does. I don't know if any disagr~ement with respect to 
that. 

* * * * * * * * 

Q: Mr. Secretary, is the Pentagon going to help in any way in preparing 
the President for the debate that's coming up? Are you going to be doing 
anything special, what's the plan, are you going to help him bone up for 
this? 

A: I really don't know; we've not been asked to participate in any way. 
I meet with him several times a week and we talk about defense issues, b.ut 
that's been going on for years, apart from the fact that there was a debate. 
So I don't anticpate anything. 

We supply the State and NSC and other interested parties with our 
consultation and contribution with respect to questions and answers for 
Presidential press conferences, just like State gives us how they're dealing 
with State issues and we tell them how we're dealing with Defense issues. 
I've not been asked to do anything particular •. 

As a member of the Defense Appropriations Committee for so many yea't;s, '·· , 
he's so knowledgeable about these issues, and as I've indicated previously"·~-_ . .-: .. ,-· 
with respect to the budget last year, he's so deeply involve~inwhat we're 
doing that I would question that his preparation would have to be very exten-
sive from the Defense part. MORE 
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Q: From the Defense Department's point of view, from the Admin­
istration's point of view, what would you want the measage to be that 
night on Defense? 

A: Obviously, exactly what I've been saying. Would you like a few 
comments on the trends? No, you wouldn't. 

Q: What do you think the American people should learn from that? 
A: I think the important thing, regardless of where the subject of defense 

is discussed or debated, whether by Presidents, Senators, Congressmen, 
Governor~, Citizens, that the truth is what's important, and the truth is that 
the United States of America is living in a world that is not perfectly 
friendly; that we are a nation that for good or ill can't look for someone 
else to take care of us and do the job for us, we have to do it ourselves. 

That weakness historically .tends to prove to be provocative and create 
instabilities and wars and conflicts, and that strength on our part will 
contribute to peace and stability in the world, and that we can't have it 
on the cheap and that people who run around saying we can, through some magic 
wa~d, have strong national defense and not have it cost very much, just plain 
aren't giving it to people straight. 

Q: Mr. Secretary, for your planning -- can I ask you if you're planning 
purposes realisitically. I know the President has said that if you can get a 
good SALT deal he will go through whether there's been an election or not. 
But as you ••• 

A: He's felt that way all along. 

Q: But looking at the Soviets, given that it's so late in the year, do 
you think the Soviets have simply decided to wait until after the election? 

A: Goodness, the President's answered this question, the Secretary of 
State's answered it, I don't know that there's anything I can contribute on 
the subject. I just don't know. The President's position has been that he 
favors a SALT II Agreement, one that is consistent with our national security 
interests. He has been working for it, he intends to keep working for it. 
To what extent the events of the next six weeks affect that, I suppose you're 
as good a judg as I am. 

Q: Do you think there's a good chance of getting a new SALT Agreement 
before the i nterim pact expires in October of '77? 

A: Well, you know, obviously that's our goal. Our goal is to face the 
reality that the interim agreement expires October '77 and that we would like 
to achieve an agreement, a SALT II Agreement, that would be consistent with 
our national security interests. 

When you're dealing with a country such as the Soviet Union that has 
interests that differ from ours, I think the important thing is to decide 
what you want to negotiate, try to negotiate it, and don't prejudge whether 
or not it's possible, because it's really up to them whether or not it's 
possible. I don't know whether or not it's possible. 

I 
I. 
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Q: Mr. Secretary, you said you're concerned about Soviets building 
toward a capability in excess of that needed to deter nuclear war. If you 
get SALT II Agreement with the limits agreed to at Vladivostok, will that· 
concern disappear, will it be gone? 

A: If you've got a SALT II Agreement with the limits agreed to at Vladivostok, 
you would have just that, you would have a SALT II Agreement at 2400 1320 with 
freedom of mix and certain other rules. To the extent that within those agreed 
SALT II arrangements one side proceeded to improve and strengthen and modernize 
and develop and the other didn't, obviouslythat would not in and of itself 
provide a balance. The purpose of SALT is not to solve very problem in the 
strategic nuclear arms race. There are some elements of the problem that 
lend themselves to arms control solutions, there are other elements of the 
equation that require a behavior pattern on our part within that SALT ·II 
Agreement, hypothetically, that assures that that balance is there. And ob­
viously, to take one example, our proposals for modernization or the strategic· 
bomber force would continue quite apart from any agreement with respect to 
SALT II. Were we to do anything else we would be sitting with a situation 
where the B-52 ages and pretty soon goes out of business. So even though 
you've got a SALT II Agreement you're going to have to keep the capabilities 
within these levels that assure an adequate deterrent. One last question. 

Q: On land warfare, you said in your letter to the XM panel that the first 
two years production of the XM-1 would be with the 105 cannon rather than the 
120. Would it be with the modified terret that would ailow the retrofitting 
with the 120? -

A: The precise configuration, those kinds of decisions would be made 
after the companies come in and provide the cost. data and schedule data and' 
capability data with respect to the various options that are continaed within 
the parameters of those proposals, or requests for proposals. The intention 
would be to obviously avoid things that would adversely affect either cost, 
schedule, or capability. With respect to specifically the gun, for example, 
there is no one I know who has any intention of putting a 120 millimeter gun 
on any tank until it's been tested and certified. And knowing when that would 
be is something that would require a ball to speculate through, because we 
won't know that until it's actually been achieved. 

Thank you, very much. 

Q: Thank you. 

END-
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